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Dubai, United Arab Emirateg

eNgro Ing fze

19 October 2022

ELF/OGRA/2022/O1

’ =PpL
The Registrar / on EP ) 0 28\ X
Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority \,/
54B Fazl—e-Haq Road, Biue Area
Islamabag, Pakistan,

Subject Application for License under Natyra| Gas Regulatory Authority Licensing
Rules 2002

Dear Sir,

I'am pleased to Submit on behalf of Engro LNG FZE (the “Appllcant"”), our application for license
from Oil & Gag Regulatory Authority (the “Authority”) to undertake regulated activity of gas (RLNG)
sales in Pakistan The Applicant isa wholly owneg subsidiary of Engro Eximp FZE who itself ig
wholly owneq by Engro Corporation Limited (“Engro”).

The Applicant hag been incorporated by Engro as a speciaf Purpose vehicle to Undertake gas
Mmarketing ang sales in Pakistan leveraging our experience ang leadership position in Pakistan's
LNG / RLNG Sector. Engro aspires to play its part in Cementing energy Security of Pakistan by
enhancing its roje and business operations from Pakistan's first LNG termingj to setting up of 5
credible LNG Supply chain in country’s private sector,

foundation for which has been laid by Government of Pakistan
and the Authority through approval of Third-Party Access (TPA) to LNG Terminals ang initiation of
the process for Promulgation of relevant accesg rules and accegs code for the Same.

The Applicant's business model is based on acquisition of €xcess / additiona| terminal capacity from
existing ang upcoming terminals,

In this context, the Applicant submits the following:

(i) a duly completed Schedule | ag per Rule 4(1) of the Natural Gas Regulatory Authority
Rules, 2002 (the “NGRA Rules, 2002"), (Annexure A);

(ii) the fees in the sum of Rupees 500,000 under Schedule 1] a5 Per Rule 26 & 33 of the
NGRA Rules (Annexure B); and

(i) application package in the format prescribed under Rule 4 of the NGRA Rules, ang
Article 5.1 of LNG Policy (Annexure C).

We request the Authority for an expeditious review of our application ang the grant of 5 license for
sale of naturaj gas subsequently. We are available for any clarifications that are required on oyr

application.

Sincerely,

) -
Kaleem Asghar
Chief Executive Officer

Engro LNG Fze engro.com
an Engre Corporation Limited Group Company

T ——— P ———

P.O. Box 262746 T +97148170213
12G, Geid Tower Trade License Nun
Cluster |, Jumeirah L_ake Towers DMCC-822132
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T +97148170213
Trade License Number

P.O. Box 262748
12G, Gold Tower

engro I

Cluster |, Jumeirah Lake Towers ~ DMCC-822132
Dubai, United Arap Emirates
19 October 2022

Schedule -1
Natural Gas Regulatory Authority Licensing Rules 2002
Name of the Company Engro LNG FZE
Company's full address along Registered Address: JAZFA One, Tower A, 11" Floor,
with telephone, fax, email and Jebel Ali Free Zone Dubai, United Arab Emirates
web address
Mailing Address: 3" Floor, Dawood Center, MT Khan
Road, Karachi, Pakistans pZx/gfe o 21— 35 RT F5e/-1e
) Phone: +971-4-422-9134
Email: engroeximpfze@engro.com | muhammad.moiz@en-
gro.com
Web: www.engro.com
Name, title & authorized signa- | Kaleem Asghar
ture of the Company's Chief Chief Executive Officer
Executive Officer Engro LNG,FZE
poo 7/ we 70 2§65
Signature ‘A" S
i = D<o . .5’
Name and addresses of the Mr. Ghias Khan
current directors of the appli- House D-98, Navy Housing Scheme, Zamzama, Phase 5,
cant DHA, Karachi
Mr. Mazhar Hasnani
Flat 131/1, Street 21, Khayaban-e-Muhafiz, Phase 6, DHA,
Karachi
/""\-
) Name & address of any person | Engro Eximp FZE, office no 1136 JAFZA One building,
or corporate body with a holding | Tower A, JAFZA, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.
of more than 1% or more in the
applicant

Applicant

Regulated activity for which a li-
cense is sought

Sale license

Nature of license applied for

Non-Exclusive

Period for which license is
sought

From: 01/01/2023
To: 31/12/2050

Details of any license held, ap-
plied for and refused under the
rules by the applicant or any of
the interested parties or any of
their affiliated or related entities

N/A

Engro LNG FZE
an Engro Corporation Limited Group Company

engro.com
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Government of Dubai

Issued PurSuant to UAE Law No. 2 of
1986 & Jebel Ali Free Zone
Companies Implementing Regulations
2016

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION
of
ENGRO LNG FZE

Incorporated on 03-Oc¢t-2022 in the
Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai, United
Arab Emirates

{version 1.1)

CERTIFIED TRUE CQPY
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FREE ZONE ESTABLISHMENT
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION
of
ENGRO LNG FzZE

1 FZE NAME

The name of the free zone establishment is'Engro LNG FZE (the FZE),
2 FZE REGISTERED ADDRESS

The Registered address of the FZE will be situated inthe Jebel All Free Zone, Dubai,

United Arab Emirates.
3 BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
3.1 The business objectives for which the FZE is established are;

(@) General Trading;
(b)  Industrial & Liquefied Natural Gas Trading;

(¢} tocarry onall such business within the area of the Jebel Ali Free Zone as the
Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority may permit under the terms of the licence issued
in respect of the FZE; and

(d)  tocarry on any other trade or business which can be carried on by the FZE in
connection with or as anciliary to any of the business objectives mentioned in
this Clause 3 orthe general business of the FZE.

GENERAL

4,1 This Memorandum of Association may not be amended, unless a resolution of the
shareholder of the FZE is passed at a geieral meeting or in writing by the shareholder
of the FZE, in person, 6r where proxies dre allowed, by proxy.

4.2 The FZE shall have separate legal personality wholly distinct from that of its
shareholder and the liability of the shareholder for the debts and obligations of the
'FZE shall be limited to the amount of the share capital of the FZE paid and payable
by the relevant shareholder. To the extent that the shareholder has partly paid for
‘shares in the share capital of the FZE, the relevant shareholder shall be liable for the

paid and unpaid portion of the shares they hold in the share capital of the FZE.

We, the undersigned, am desirous of forming a free zone ‘eslablishment pursuant to this
Memorandum of Association.

Signed: {

» et 3 K A ]
F %‘ﬁ@iﬂmﬂm ")\f}‘
ENGRO LNG FZE Date
Represented by: }
Mohamed Nazmy Ibrahim MUV\E i —H—
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1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

23

2.4

25
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FREE ZONE ESTABLISHMENT
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
of
ENGRO LNG FZE
INTRODUCTION.
;A'ny terms defined in these Articles shall have the meanings as.set out in Schedule
context otherwise requires, words or expressions contained in these

Unless the
Articles, shall have the same meaningas in the Implementing Regulations as in force
on the daté when these Articies become binding on the FZE.

CAPITAL AND SHARES

Stisre Capital

The share capital of the FZE is AED 10,000 (UAE Dirhams Ten Thousand) divided
into 100 (One Hundred) shares of a nominal or par value of AED 100 (One Hundred

Dirham) each having the rights and being subject to the restrictions set out in these
Articles,

Details of the Sharefolder
The capital of the FZE is distributed as follows:
Name of Sharetolder: Engro Eximp FzZE
Natioriality: United Arab Emirates
Address: Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai, United Arab Emirates
Number of Shares: 100
Percentage: 100%
Subject to the provisions: of the Implementing Regulations and without prejudice to
any rights, entitlements or restrictions attached to any existing Share, the FZE may
issue Shares as.may be determined by a Resolution.
Rights attached to Shares
Each Share:
(3) carries the fight to vote ata General Meeting;
(b) representsa proportionate interest in-the ownership of the FZE; and
(c)  ranks equally with other Shares in all respects.
Changes io the Share Capital
The FZE may through a Resolution :
(@) increasethe share capital'of the FZE by issuing further Shares;

(b) consolidate and divide all'or some of the Shares into;

(i)  alesser number of Shares than before the consolidation, resulting in a | S \

increase in the ach Share; f"“‘;g“’\{ﬁ

5%
& aivd
,'f:@/sf.-annn #
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3.2

3.3

4.2

43

5.1

5:2

5.3

(i)  agreater nhumber of Shares than before the consolidation, resulting in a
decreaseé in the value of each Share;

provided the aggregate value of the Shares remains the Same before and after
the consolidation or division,

{c) issye Shares for consideration other than cash, as long as the valye of the
consideration other thaft cash js confirmed in writing by an auditor and the
auditor is approved by the Registrar; and

(dy  decrease the Capital by:

(i reducing the value of the shares, either by (i) reimbursing part of the
value to the Shareholder: or (ii) absolving the Shareholder of the unpaid
amountof their Shares, wheré the Registrar has permitted Shares to be
partly paid; or

(ii) cancelling paid up capital, to reflect: (i) a 10ss sustained by the FZE: or
{iiywhere the availabie assets of the FZE no longer represent the capital,

provided the procedures as prescribed in the Implementinig Regulations in
order to decrease the-capital are followed and

() purchase its own Shares, as treasury shares, subject to the approval of the
Registrar.

TRANSFER OF SHARES

The Shareholder may transfer hisfits Shares inthe FZE to 3 third party by virtue of
aninstrument of transfer in writing.

The instrument. of transfey in writing shall pe executed by thie tranisferor and the
transfereg (or their duly authorised fepresentatives) i front of 4 fepresentative of the
Authority and any other documents required by the Authority to register the transfer
of shares shalf he submitted to the Authority at the same time,

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

If the Shareholder dies, his personal representative shall be the only person
fecognised by the FZE as having title to the Shares.

At the time a Person is registered as.a Shareholder in the Companies Register, that
person shall automatically agreeto:be bound by the.Memorandum':.ofAssociatiOn and
the Articles of Association of the FZE.

DIVIDENDS

Decision to Dectare a Divigeny

Subject tothe lmple'menting Regulaﬁons, the FZE may by a.decision of the Directors,
declare dividends.

Unless the decision of the Director(s) to declare a dividend or the Resolution to pay
a dividend specif otherwise, the dividend must be paidto the.Sharehc)lde‘rwithin.ﬁ\ie
(5) business days from the date of the Resolution,

the Shareholden, th must resoive that"immediately after a dividen

Where a dividend is declared or g distribution made, or the same is recommended ;9/ WJ\:\
1 d s\{> 15 ,
# W& =

% /
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5'-4

55

5.6

5.7

6.8

5.9
510

6.1

declared or a.distribution is made, the FZE should, on réasonable grounds, be able
to.pay its debis as they become due in the normal course of business.

A dividend: shall pe recommended by the Directors to the Shiareholder, The
Shareholder maybya Resolution, declare a dividend which is higher than the amount
Tecommended by the Directors, however, such a dividend shall only be payable to
the extent the Directors are able to provide the resoiution setout in Article 5.3 in
respect of the dividend-amount recommended by the Shareholder,

Distribution meaning

In this Article -5, "distribution™ means the distribution of assets of the FZE to the
Shareholder, including dividends, whether jn cash or otherwise, except distribytion
by way of:

(@ anissueof bonus shares;

{b)  redemption or purchase of the Fze's own Shares; out of the share capital or
out of unrealised profits;

{c) reduction of share capital, by ext‘ingu_ishing_or reducing the liability of a
Shareholder on the Shares; and

Inlerim Dividands

‘Subject to the ‘Provisions of the ‘lmpleméntin‘g Regulations, the FZE may, in
‘accordance with a decision of the Directors, pay interim dividends. if it appears to

thern that they are justified by the profits of the FZE available for distribution.

Payment of Dividends

General -
No dividend or other moneys payable in respeciof a Share shall bear interest,

Any dividend which has remained ‘unclaimed for twelve years fromthe date when it
became dye fOr.paymentshaH, if the Directors soresolve, he forfeited and cease to
remain owing by the FZE. The amount of the dividend shalf then be dealt with in
accordance with the applicable Accounting-Standards.

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

Fowers of Direciors.

3 ng as provided int | 2ment :
Directors are Tesponsible for the management of the FZE's business, for which

Purpose they may exercise ajj of the powers of the FZE. The Directors shaly have the

fbilpw'ing » u‘th-oriﬁ‘e‘s:ahdvpowers; which shall be exercised jointly by all the Directors
of the FZE:
(a) to collect, receive, enforce, release and give valid receipts and clischaar\tl;;e”s/'*‘:;-;i
forany and all debts o obligations of or owing to or by the FZE: ’
/ V, Wﬁ :
CERTIFIED TRUE copy’ s AL ]
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(b}  toestablish branches and/or incorporate subsidiaries and/or any type of the
companies inthe UAE or outside of UAE and sign any documents -inc[uding
and not limited to memorandum and articles of association apg
amendments: thereto, national/ local service -agent agreements and
améndmenis thereto, sponsor agreements, application forms, instruments
Or any resolutions in connection thereto and to execute any resolution to
appointiresign and empower any officer, including general manager,
director or company secretary of such companies in which the FZE is a
shareholder or a branch which is owned by the FZE;

{¢) to buy,acquire, sell or assignsharesin companies inside or outside the UAE
in the name of the FZE ang on its behalf, to enter into joint ventures
agreements, termination agreements, to-execute any -resolution or sign
share transfer/ acquisition agreements, forms, undertakings, letters,
guarantees, memorandym and articles of assoclation or any amendments
thereto in any of the companies in which the FZE owns.or intends to ‘acquire

{¥) to take a1 necessary - procedures, to sign any agreement, and/or
resolution{s) before ~all competent authorities, this includes without
limitation, the Authority, the Notary Public, the Departments of Ecenomic
Development, Ministry of Economy, Chamber of Commerce, the Land
Departments, Real Estate Regulator Authority orany other governmentaj or
semi-governmental authorities inside the UAE or outside of the UAE;

(¢) tograntthe general managers and directors of the company and branches

) to écknoWledgevand confirm all debts and Kabilities due to and payable by

(@ tobuy, sublease, sell, purchase, exchange, release, discharge, surrender,
morigage, pledge, charge, lease or otherwise dispose'oraas_sign of any part
of the FZfE's assets, properties, lands, real estate units, movable &
immovable, for such consideration and subject to such other terms and
conditionis and to sign gift, tra nsfer, sale and purchase contracts orany other
agreements in connection therewith;

(h)  to sign and execute any lease agreement or Sublease agreement to be
entered into by the FZE of any nature Whatsoever; :

{i) negotiate, sign and execute any agreement, contract, undertaking or
indemnity ‘of any nature whatsoever (including any amendments thereto),
including, any document relating to any commercial or banking transaction
and take all ‘ : irecic

@} to open, close, Operate bank account(s) of any type and make any

(K)  apply for, negotiate, execute, avail or obtain accept any finance, credit
facilities, letters of credit, finance facilities, import and exportfacilities, loans, ...
morigages or carry out any borrowing for the FZE, for any monetary am?:ﬂﬁﬁ?; \\

o ;

from any bank in any j isdiction, including the UAE ("Credit Facilities) g

-2
CERTIFIED TRUE copy|qo 6= )

S,
B [l
“isttion ¥

-
Company Secretary



0

(m)

()

(©)

{p)

)

(r)

(s)

(®)

interest of the FZE and to sign any acceptance thereof and any subsequent
amendment, modificalion or revision to siich Credit Facilities or any part
thereof and ail other relevant documents for and on behalf of the FZE:

such ferms and conditibns as the Directors may deem to be in the best

to obtain all Credit Facilities including but not limited to secured. or
unsecured borrowings of monies, overdrafts, letters of credit, trade
receivables, discounting facilities, trust receipts, bonds, foreign -exchange,
bank guarantees and to do and xecute all banking transactions and sign
all documents with said bank for said credit facilities (including, without
limitation, any indemnities or promissory notes);

to agree to all renewals, variations (including revisions of all fimits and
pricing of the Credit Facilities), restructuring, substitution and/or interchange
of the Credit Facilities with full authority to accept, for aiid on behalf of the
FZE, all terms and conditions, including security, as may be required by the

relevant banks (from whom the FZE has obtained Credit Facilities) from time

totime, stated in any subsequent or supplemenial letters in connection with
the Credit Facilities;

to-arrange with and accept from the relevantbanks (from whom the FZE has
obtained Credit Facilities) the. provision of any and all services or producls
by such banks;

to carry out any banking or finance related transactions, to represent the
FZE before all the banks with which the FZE does business, avails any
financial services, signs.any agreement, form, document, letter, notice, or
banking faciliies or pioducts from, or maintains accounts with in any
jurisdiction, including the UAE, to execute any documentation or contract on
behalf of the FZE, be it a commercial or in relation to banking or finance,
procure credit; lending, in relation to any transaction, facility, credit facility or
barrowing, from any person (legal or natural) or any financial institution,
including a bank;

o sign any cheques, drafts, bills of exchange, payment.orders or any other

negotiable instrument of the FZE, of any value whatsoever, which may be
deemed necessary by such person, in relation to-any matter, from time to
time;

to'dosuch acts that may be necessary.or ancillary to the above, for or before:
the banks:

to do any and all acts and things and 1o approve, complete, atend,
supplement, affirm, sign, ‘execute or accept (by electronic means or
otherwise) and/or deliver, any. forms, certificates, notices, instructions,
communications; confirmations, agreements or other documents ancillary
to.or in connection with any transactions, agreements and other documents
provided by the FZE, from time to time;

to open, operate and close investment accounts in the name of the FZE;
and

on behalf of the FZE:

() incorporate any corporate enlity on behalf of the FZE in any
jurisdiction, including Jebel Ali Free Zone;

(iiy  subscribe to any number of shares (including any class of shares) in
any corporate eritity in any jurisdiction;

(i) acquire any number of shares:as the Directors may deem fit in any
Ccorporate entity inany jusisdiction

CERTIFIED TRUE copy
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6.2

6.3
6.4

6.5

6.6

{iv}) establish or acquire any branch with any licensed activity in any
Jurisdiction, including the Jebel All Free Zone as the Directors may
deem fit, :

{u}  (the corporate entity or branch incorporated and established by the

() sell; assign or transfer. any-number of shares in any Future Entity
(including a branch) or Subsidiary of the FZE as the Directors may
deen fit

(V) on behaif of the F7E
{i) sign any resolution for incorporation orestablishment of any Future

Entity {including any Subsidiary), acquisition of any shares,
subscription of any shares, acquisition of any branch or sale,
‘assignment of transfer of-any shares of branch in any Future Entity
‘and/or Subsidiary.of the FZE as the Directors may deem fit;

(i} sign memorandum and articles of association and any amendment

thereto for any nature whatsoever, natishal/ local service agency

agreements, of any Future Entity and/ or Subsidiary of the FZE:

(i)  appoint, remove Of suspend any director, general manager, company
Secretary orany officeror employee of any Future Entity or Subsidiary

of the FZE;

vy as a sharehoider_ and parent company in any Future. Entity: or
Subsidiary of -the FZE, negotiate and sign -any lease or sublease
agreement with the Authority orany corporate entity;

(v) sign any resolution of ‘any nature whatsoever:

{vi) appointand remove attorneys and authorised signatories of the FZE
from time to time: and

W to delegate part or all of the: above-mentiongd powers to any person and
revoke such delegation as'they deem fit.
In the event the FzE Proposes to-create a security interest as permitted under the:
Implementing Regulations, to be issued by the FZE, the Directors shall have the
Power to registerthe security interest with the Registrar,

Appointment and Remova/ of Direciors

The FZE shali have at least one (1) Director.

The first Directo r(s) shali be appointed by the Shareholder that incorporated the FZE.
A Director may be ‘appointed or removed, -and any vacancy filled, by 5 Resolution.

The FZE shall have a secretary, who shall beappointed ang removed by 5 Resolution
{the Secretary). The offices of a Director and Secretary may be held jointly by a single
person,

Conflict of Interest

If a Director-has a direct or indirect interestin atransaction entered into or proposed
to be entered into by the FZE or a Subsidiary of the FZE, which interest, to a material
extent conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the FZE and of which conflict the
Director Is-aware, the Director must.disclose to the FZE the nature and extent of the

interest. o,
= N
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6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

8.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16
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The disclosure under Article 6.6 must.be made by the Director in wiiling to the FZE,
as soon as practicable after the Director becomes aware of the circumstances which
gave rise to the duty of the Director to make the disclosure.

The transaction, in which a conflict arises.as described in this Article 6 may stiil be

authorised by the FZE. The Directors shall refer the transaction to a General Meeting
and the Shareholder may by a Resolution confirm the transactior.

The FZE or the Shareholder may not claim a transaction to be void, or hold a Director
accountable where: :

(a} the transaction is confitmed by a Resolution; and
(b)  thenatureand extentof thie Director's interestin the transaction was accurately

disclosed in reasonable detail in the notice calling the General Meeting at
which the resolution confirming the transaction is passed,

Proceedings of Directors

To the extent that the FZE does nol have more than one (1) Director, Articles 6.11 to
6.24 do not'apply and the Director may take decisions without. regard to Articles 6,11
10 6:24,

Any decision of the Directors must be either 3 majority decision at a meeting of the
Directors or a decision taken in accordance with Article 6,12,

writing.
Calling a Meeting

A Director may, and the Secretary at the request of a Director shall, call a meeting of
the Board;

Notice-of any Directors’ or Board meeting must indicate:

{a) its-proposed date and time;

(by  whereitis to take place;

{¢) an agenda of items to be considered atthe mesting;

{d) any supporting documents that should be considered before the me"étihQ; and

(&) is anticipated that directors participating in the meeting will not be in the

if it 1
Same place, how itis Proposed that they should communicate with each other
during the meeting. ,

(5) days from when the meeting is scheduled to take place, unless all of the eligible
Directors (entitied to vote on a matter if it had been proposed at a meeling) approve
to a shorter notice period.,

Notice of a Directors’ meeting must be given to each Director in writing at least five

Farticipation in Directors ‘meetings
Directors patticipate in a Directors’ meeting, or part of a Directors’ meeting, when;

{a) 1the meeting has been called:and takes place in accordance with these Articles,
and

(b}  they can each communicate 16 the others any information or opinions they
have on any particular item of the business of the meeting.

a
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6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26;

6.27

6.28
6.29

6.30
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If ali the Directors participating in a meeting aré not in the-same place, they may
decide that the meeting is to be treated as taking place wherever any of them is
located.

Quorum

The quorum for the transaction of the business of the board of Directors shall be two
or any other number fixed by the Directors,

Ifthe number of Directors is less than the number fixed as the-quorum, the continuing
Directots or Difector- may act only for the purpose of filling vacancies in respect of
employees of the FZE or of calling-a General Meeting.

Alternate Director

An alternate Director shall be given notice of all meetings of which his appointor is
entitled to receive notice and s entitled to attend and vote at'such meetings.

An alternate Director holds office foras long as his appointor holds office unless he

is removed by written instrument by his appointor,

Any appointment or removal of an alternate Director shall be given to the Secretary
of the FZE.

Unless otherwise provided, an alternate Director shajl not be regarded as the agent
of his appolintor but shall beresponsible for his acts or omissions,

Minutes
The Secretary shall cause minutes to be kept to recorg:
(8) all appoirtments of officers made by the Directors or Shareholder; and

by ai proceedings at General Meetings of the FzE's Sharehoider and of the.
Directors including the names: of the Directors present at each such meeting.

The Secretary is authorised by the FZE to certify true copies of the minutes, of
extracts of the minutes,

Manager

The FZE shall have 3 manager, whose name will be recorded in the Companies
Registerand appearon the licence of the FZE issued by the Authority (the Manager).

Appointment and Removaf, of the Manager

The position ofa Manager may be held by the Shareholder,,r Director.or the Secretary.

The Manager may be appointed or removed by a Resolution or by a decision of the
Directors,

Powers of the Msanager

The Manager is authorised and directed by the Shareholder to manage the day to
day affairs of the.FZE and undertake.all aclivities required for that purpose in¢luding,
but not limited to:

(8)  the.power to act for, if the hame of and on behalf of the FZE;

by to carry on and manage the day-to-day operations of the FZE and 1o sign o ,(.\“";‘;"\“

behalf of and represent the FZE and transact, Manage and carry on and dg'a

Company Secretary
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things requisite Tieécessary or in any manner connected or having reference to
the affairs of the FZE;

{c):  deal with and do all things necessary with the Customs Authority, in order to
clear any goods to pe used by the FZE from the Customs Authority;

(d)  deal with and do all things necessary with the relevant labour ang immigration
departments at the Authority in ordertg register and cancel the employment of
any employees of the FZE as well as any other matters concerning the FZE,
its employees and the immigration and labour departments;

(&) representthe FZE before the Authority for any matter whatsoe\)ef;

M
(9) liaise and deal with the Dubai Electricity & Water Authority, district cooling, du,

()] Sign and execute any application forms, letlers, submissions orrequests to the

{i) dele_gate-any"of the above authiorities toany person as the Manager may deem
fit.

The FZE sha Il hold 2 General Meeting as its annua| General Meeting within eighteen
(18) months from the date-of the FZE’s incorporation, A General Meeting shall then
be held at least once every twelve (12) months thereafter, .

Any meetings of the Shareholder which is not the annual General Meeting shall be
referred to as-an, extra-ordinary Generaj Meeting,

Calling & Generaf Meeting

The. Ditectors may call a General Meeting to-consider a matter that ‘the Directors
determine requires consideration by the Shareholder., They must call .a Genera)

Meeting, at least once every twelve (12) months in. accordance with Article 7.1,

The notice should:

(@) specifythe time, place and date of the meéting:

(b)  provide the agenda of the meeting;

(¢} state the general nature of the business of the meeting;
{d)  state the intention to propose 3 resolution, if any;

{€) permit the Shareholder 1o appoint a proxy who may attend and vote on jts or
his behalf: ang '

{f)  includea copy-of accounts and auditor's report, jf relevant.

z":/?
Quorum and Voting / i
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7.5 A General Meeting of the FZE will be considered to be convened, and a reselution
will be considered to be passed at such General Meeting, by the Shareholderissui'ng
a.decision in writing. If a decision'is not taken in writing, the Shareholder may provide
the FZE with 3 record in writing of the decision,

Froxy
7.6 The Shareholder is entit}ed to» appoint a proxy for the purposes of epresenting and

Minutes

Minutes of-Genera’lMee.t'ihgs shall be Pprepared summa rising all de.cisions which have
taken place at, as wel| asthe decisions taken by, the General Meeting. The minutes
shall be entered in g special register, be signed by the Shareholder and be kept at
the FZE's head office. '

7.8 The Shareholder may have access to the register referred to in Aticle 7.7, either
personally or by hishts.duly authorised represen tative, and hefit may also review the

balance sheet, the profit and loss account and the annual report of the FZE.
8 ACCOUNTS
Regquirement fo prepare Accourits

8.1 The accounts of the FzE must be approved by the Directors and must be examined
and reported on by an auditor. Once the accounts are approved and examined, the
Manager must sign'the accounts.

7.7

8.2 The Directors must, for each financial Year, lay before a Generaj Meeting:
{8) the accounts of the FZE, as approved by the Directors and signed by the
Manager:; and

{b) the report of the auditor,

in order for the Shareholder to consider and if deemed appropriate, approve the
accounts of the. FZE for the relevant financial year,

8.3 if the-Shareholder passes a resolution in writing or at a General Meeting in respect
of a particular financial year, that:
(a) rlo-accounts or auditor's report shiould be laid before a General Meeting for that
financial year; or
(b)  no auditor should be appointed, subject to the approval of the Registray,

year
Auditor Appointment
84 The Registrar shall maintain a list of approved auditors and the FZE must appoint an
auditor from the list for the purposes for which the auditor is required under the
Implementing Regulations, The FZE may appoint more than one auditor
8.5 The Sha_reholder may appoint an auditor. If no appointment is. made, the existing
auditor's term will be extended until a successor is appointed.
8.6 An auditor shall have the fight to access the records of the F7E that may be requireq.
' for the audit. The FZE shall provide alf information the audiior considers necess‘ér,y,«
In order to complete its audit. f TR
PIETEETTY temie o Y H vﬁmg ’
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An auditor is. entitied to recaive nolice: of a General Meeting and to attend g ‘Gen'eral
Meeting in respect of an agenda item that is in relation to a matter-that the auditor
may be concernied with.

SECURITY | NTERESTS

Share Pledge

to @ bank or financiaj institution in respect of a debt or obligation of the ‘Sharehoid.er,
the FZE or any other person, by virtue of a written instrument, signed by the

Shareholder and the relevant bank of financial institution, in a form approved by the
Registrar,

Other Security interests

8.2 The Directors may by a resolution of the Directors ata Boarg meeting, approve of the
FZE granting as security for a debt or obligation of the FZE or any other person:

(@)  a conditional assignment of a lease agreement entered inio by the FZE, in

5| favour of BNy person;
{9 ' A o oy :

(by a mortgage_cv,era building created pursuant to Law no. 1 of 2002 Mortgage of
Immovable Property Erectad at Jebel Ali Free Zone, issued by Makioum Bin
Rashid Al Maktoum Ruler of Dubai, in favour of a bank or financial institution

(©) a pledge over the FZE’s movable assets, in favour of any person; or

(d) anyother security interest available under the laws of the UAE, in favour ofany
Person, and as permitted. by the Registrar,

9:3 The instrument creating the security interest pu'rsuani loArticle 9.2, shall be jn 5 form
approved by the Registrar. The security interest shall be created at the time the.
instrument creating the security interest is entered into the securily register
maintained by the Registrar,

10 WINDING upP

10.1 The FZE may-be wound up:

{a) bythe Registrar;-or
(o)) voluntarily, by'a Resolution,
()

10.2 The FZE may be wound up in any one of the following cases:
(8)  the period fixed for the duration of the FzE has expired;

(b)  whenan event as prescribed in these Articles takes place, which results in the

FZE being required to be wound up; or

{¢)  ‘the Sharsholder at a General Meeting, by a Resolution, resolves for the Fzg
to'be wound up voluntarily,

10.3 Subjectto the Implementing Regulations, ifthe FZE is 10 be wound up voluntarily, the
Shareholder may by a Resolution, appeint-one or more auditors as liquidators, whose
appoiniment shall be notified to the Registrar.

11 MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 Subject to the prior approval-of the Authority or the Registrar, the Shareholder may
by a Resolution, alter; cancel, suppleément, or vary any or all of these Articles, as it
may consider appropriate from time to fime. _

1.2 The FZE shall comply witn: ﬁ»“‘;’;‘j\&\
= o

(3)  the Memorandum and A ation of the FZE; r u,:i&‘?}
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(b) the implementing Regulations;
(¢} the provisions of Federal Law No {2) of 2015, as applied by the Registrar; and
{d) theterms of the licence issued by the Authority to the FZE,

ENGRO EXIMP FzE Date
Represented by:
Mohamed Nazmy ibrahim

CERTIFIED TRyE COPy

Com{%{}@ Scecretary

FEN

= 5
Cam afrd
§ Ry
%, 4

by,
eohttinn ¥

14



Schedule 1 - Definitions

1 In these Articles, the following terms shall have the meanings set opposite:
"Accounting ' means the International Finanejal Reporling Standards
Standards’ » issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;
CAEDT T '”‘""”f“?rié%"ﬁs”ﬂﬁé‘ﬁirha’rﬁéffﬁé lawful currency of the UAE;
‘Aticles’ - means these articles of association of the-FZE;
TAuthoriy T ' means the Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority;
‘Board” | means the board of Directors; =~ |
‘Companies means the register of comparies maintained by the
Register' Registrar; |
 "Customs Authority’ means Dubai Customs; -
‘Directors’ ™~ " imeans the directors of the F2E. ~ ™ 9
) TFZET ~Treansthe company to be incorporated by the ~
- Shareholder pursuant to this Memorandum;
‘General Mesting' means a general meeting of the Shareholder dgiy
convened in accordance with the provisions of these
! 1 Arlicles;
H :
i ‘implémenting “means the Jebel Ali Free Zone Companies implementing
! Regulations’ Regulations 2016:
'Manager' has the meaning given tot i Clause 6.27: i
"Secretary’ has the meaning given 1o it in-Aticle 6.5,
{ ‘Shares' ~ meéansshares in the capital of the FZE: |
o I neaTs the Sk e !
‘Shareholder' means the shareholder of the FZE, particulars of which [
. are setout in Article 2.2; |
'Subsidiary’ , means.a body corporata; T e -
/—\, { fifty per cemt (50%) of whose direciors can be elected by

‘ another company; or

' whose majority voting fights are directly or indirectly
, controlled or owned by another company.

'Registrar means the person appointed as Registrar of companies
{ | pursuant {o the Implementing Regulations;
‘Resolution’ means & résolution passad at a General Mesting by the

Shareholder in person, or where proxies are allowed, by
proxy or a resolution in writing signed by the Shareholder
or its authorised representative; and

'UAE" means the United Arab Emirates,

2 In these Articles, unless the context otherwise requires;

(@) words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa and words .-
importing any gender includes every gender;

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
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(b)

(c)

4 (@

(e)

{H

(9)

words relating to nalural persons shall include companies, entities,
associations or bodies of persons whether incorporaied-or not;

references to monih, monthly and year-and any other references in ﬁr‘ne shall
be construed by reference to the:Gregorian calendar:

references to times of day are, unless the context requires otherwiss, to. the
time in the UAE and references to 3 day are to a period of 24 hours running
from midnight on the previous day;

references to any legislation or legislative provision is a reference 1o it as
amended or extended from time to. time, or as replaced: with equivalent or
similar.provisions;

references to periods of time as being given from a given day, or day on which
an act or event occurs, are to be caleulated inclusive of that day; and

references to any legislation or legislative provision is a reference to it as
amended or extended from time to time, or as replaced with equivalent or
similar provisions,

) 3 The headings in these Articles are for convenience only and shall not affect jts

interpretation.
07@*

16

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
Compaalny Settetary




Free Zone Establishment

Jaiza

Jebel Al Free Zone

This is to certify that
ENGRO LNG FZE

has been duly formed as 5 Free Zone Establishment
with limited liability pursuant to Law No, g of 1992
and imple,emtion Regulations issued thereunder
by the Jebel Ali Free Zone and Registered in the
FZE Register this

03-October-2022

e

This certificate is issued subject to and upon the
terms contained in the said Law and iImplementing
Regulations (as the same may be varied from time
to'time) and of the FZE conditions issued or to be
issued by the Jebel Ali Free Zone from time to time
and the Licence issued or be issued by the Jebel
Ali Free Zone in respect of the aforementioned
Free Zone Establishment.

Registrar
Jebel Ali Free Zone
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General Trading License %Wjaf

Government of Dupai Lot N il )
;‘;eizel All Free Zone

License Number 25484127 ToEAL LYY

Licensee ENGROLNG FzE LR IVE_ IV PN Las jll vl
Trade Name ENGRO LNG FzE Zee o Jhyain T at
Legal Status FZE {Limited Liability) (3322 Alghs i3} 2 55 SFI S
fssue Date 03/10/2022 LRAR/ARTEL 4 SeaYV A
Expiry Date 02/10/2023 LREArARY AL sy
Business Unit Jebel Ali-Free Zone e e Beadi Tiaan ol p Uk

“Company Manac er
Name of Manager © SYEDKALEEM ASGHAR NAQVI ASGHAR S ot S35 Jhct S s

/—\’ MEHD!
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Premises No.
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Building Name
Area Name
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P.O. Box 262746 T +87148170213 ﬁ

12G, Gold Tower Trade License Number

= ; : Cluster |, Jumeirah Lake Towers DMCC-822132
Cubai, United Arab Emirates
=
Ty -7 ,’\

19 October 2022

To:

The Registrar

Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority
54B Fazl-e-Haq Road, Biue Area
Islamabad, Pakistan.

Subject: Reguirement to provide attested Copy of the Applicant's latest yearly
submission to the requlator for the licence of sale of natural gas under Rule
4 of the NGRA Rules, 2002, '
"_'_'———-—————.________‘_______

Dear Sir,

We would like to inform you that Engro LNG Fzg (the “Applicant") has been recently
incorporated for the purpose engaging in the sale of natural gas. The Applicant is required to
provide the attested copies of jts yearly submissions to the regulator for obtaining a valig
license in accordance with Rule 4(3)(c) of the NGRA Rules 2002,

The Applicant has been incorporated in Dubai, United Arab’ Emirates and as such, in

()

Regards,

Arlin Merchant

Company Secretary

Engro LNG FZE engro.com

an Engro Corporation Limited Group Company
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Reference: 12553104
Bate: 21/16/2022
Addressed To: ENGRO LNG FZE

iect: t any
Shareholders Information
Dear Sirs, tday 9 Apke A

The Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority hereby certifies &
that ENGRO LNG FZE has been formed and Y
registered as an FZE on 03-10-2022, under the
Registration No., 22089904,
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For your informatjon, please find the below list of el s ) Saa 2, el Gunall olandy 2 o0 (19385 2S5l glay)

relevant parties for the above Establishment.

frect . .
Ghiasuddin Khan Pakistan

Mazhar Abbas Hasnani Pakistan

Syed Kaleem Asghar Naqvi Asghar Mehdi Pakistan

Arlin Merchang Canada

EZE Shareholder Nationality No. of Share Yalue of Shaye
Engro Eximp Fze 100 100

The above party(ies) are authorized signatories for Ayl e Al o Colsiall o oo oy ) S0l pypie

the Establishment,

This letter has been issued upon Establishment Qs oDlef 5, o) s gl Gl L e A 1 oda e 3§ iy
Tequest and without any iegal liabilities on Jafza, ol elas 40y @ e diads ol hidl Jaas
With regards, plaaYl Gl J i ) sleis

Jebel Ali Free Zone Aauthority

This letter is valid for 30 days from the date of issue.

For any further information, Pplease contact Jafza Call Center at

JAFZA (800-52392)
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P.O. Box 262746 T +97148170213 C

12G, Gold Tower Trade License Number
Cluster I, Jumeirah Lake Towers DMCC-822132
Dubai, United Arab Emirates

£

engro Ing fze

(

19 October 2022

To:

The Registrar

Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority
54B Fazl-e-Haq Road, Blue Area
Islamabad, Pakistan,

Subject: Requirement of attested audited and unaudited half yearly financial statement
for the licence of sale of natural gas under Rule 4 of the NGRA Rules, 2002.

We would like to inform you that Engro LNG Fzg (the “Applicant”) has been recently
incorporated for the Purpose of engaging in the sale of natural gas.

The Applicant, as a newiy. incorporated entity, has not yet completed its first financiaj year.
Therefore, the requirement stated in the aforementioned rule for the submission of auditeq
and unaudited half yearly financial statements.cannot be fulfilled.

Regards,

Arlin Merchant

Company Secretary '

Engro LNG FZE engro.com

an Engro Corporation Limited Group Company
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P.0. Box 262746 ¥ 497148170213

12G, Gold Tower Trade Liconse Numbsr
Cluster |, Jumsirah { ake Towers  DMCC-8221 32
Dubal, United Arab Emirates

; RESOLUTION NO.1 OF 2022
S JION NO.T OF 2022
RESOLUTIONS OF THE DIRECTORS OF ENGRO LNG FZE DATED 17 OCTOBER
2022
We, the undersigned, being directors of Engro LNG FZE, a company incorporated in the Jebel Ali
Free Zone, Dubai, United Arab Emirates, with license 10. 25484127 (the “Com pany”), for the time

being pursuant to Article 6.1 of the Company’s Articles of Association, resolve the following:
RESOLVE THAT, the Company is duly empowered and authorised to prepare and apply to the
Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority, Pakistan for a license in respect of sale and marketing of RLNG
in Pakistan (the “Application®).

FURTHER RESOLVE THAT, the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and the

Company Secretary (the “Authorised Persons”) of the Company are hereby authorised, Jjointly or
severally, to negotiate, finalize and execute the Application and any and aJ] relevant documents and

instruments in relation thereto,

FURTHER RESOLVE THAT, the Authorised Persons of the Company are hereby empowered”
and authorised to, jointly or severally, to do al] acts, matters, dee i

FURTHER RESOLVE THAT, the Authorised Persons of the Company may delegate all or any
of the above Powers conferred on them j i i

! ) ’ X“ p -
Name:: g.l%in Khan Name: Mazhar Abbas Hasnani
Title: Director

Title: Director
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FREE ZONE ESTABLISHMENT
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

of
ENGRO EXIMP FZE
1 FZE NAME
The name of the free zone establishment is 'Engro Eximp FZE' (the FZE).
2 FZE REGISTERED ADDRESS

The Registered address of the FZE will be situated in BCW, JAFZA One,
11" Floor, office no. 1136, Jebe! Ali Free Zohe, Dubal, United Arab

Emirates.
3 BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
3.1 The business objectives for which the FZE is established are:

(8) General Trading

(b) to carry on all such business within the area of the Jebel Ali Free
Zone as the Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority may permit under the terms
of the licence issued in respect of the FZE; and

{c) to carry on any other trads or business which can be carried on by the

FZE in connection with or as ancillary to any of the -business

objectives mentioned in this Clause 3 or the general business of the

FZE. —~
GENERAL

4.1 ‘This Memorandum of Association may not be amended; unless a resolution
of the shareholder of the FZE is passed at a general meeting or In writing by
the shareholder of the FZE, in person, or where proxies are allowed, by
proxy.

4.2 The FZE shall have separate legal personality wholly distinct from that of its
shareholder and the liabillty of the shareholder for the debts and obligations
of the FZE shall be limited to the amount of the share- capital of the FZE
paid and payable by the relevant shareholder. To the extent that the
shareholder has partly paid for shares in the share capital of the FZE, the
relevant shareholder shall be liable for the paid and unpaid portion of the
shares they hold in the share capital of the FZE.

1/ We, the undersigned, am desirous of forming a free zone establishment pursuant
to this Memorandum of Association.

4
F o S ﬁ
SIGNED by e
[ATCO’s atiomé}{]\(/
on behalf of S

ENGRO FERTILIZERS LIMITED

N
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FREE ZONE ESTABLISHMENT
. ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
of
ENGRO EXIMP FZE
1 INTRODUCTION
1.1 Any terms defined in these Articles shall have the meanings as set out in
Schedule 1.
1.2 Unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions contained in

these Arlicles, shall have the same meaning as in the Implementing
Regulations as in force on the date when these Articles bacome binding on

the FZE.
2 CAPITAL AND SHARES

e Share Capital

2.1 The capital of the FZE is One (1) Shares with a value of AED 1,000,000.
Share must be paid in full by the Shareholder when gllotted, unless the
Registrar authorises a Share to be partly paid,

Detalls of the Shareholder
2.2 The capital of the FZE is distributed as follows:
(a) Name of Shareholder: Engro Fertilizers Limited
Nationality: Pakistan
Address: 7" & 8" Floor, The Harbor Front Building, HC-3, Marine Drive,
Block 4, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan
Number of Shares: One (1)
Percentage: 100%
23 Subject to the provisions of the Implementing Regulations  and without
() prejudice to any rights, entitiements or restrictions attached to any existing
Shars, the FZE may issue Shares as may be determined by a Resolution.
Rights attached to Shares

24 Each Share:
(@) carries the right to vote at a General Meeting;
(b) represents.a proportionate interest in the ownership of the FZE: and
(6) ranks equally with other Shares in all respects.
Changes fo the Share Capital
2.5 The FZE may through a Resolution:
: (@) increase the share capital of the FZE by issuing further Shares;

(b) consolidate and divide all or some of the Shares into:
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3.2

3.3

() a lesser number of Shares than before the consolidation,
resulting in an'increase in the value of each Share;

(i) a greater number of Shares than bsfore the consolidation,
resulting in a decrease in the value of each Share;

provided the aggregate value of the Shares remains the same before
and after the consolidation or division.

{c) issue Shares for consideration other than cash, as long as the value
of the consideration other than cash is confirmed In writing by an
auditor and the auditor is approved by the Registrar; and

(d) decreass the capital by:

()  reducing the value of the shares, either by () reimbursing part of
the value to the Shareholder: or (il) absolving the Sharsholder of
the unpaid amount of thelr Shares, where the Registrar has
permitted Shares to be partly paid: or

(i)  cancslling pald up capital, to reflact: (i) a loss sustained by the
FZE; or (ii) where the available assefs of the FZE no longer
represent the capital,

provided the procedires as prescribed in the Implementing
Regulations in order to decrease the capital are followed; and

(e) purchase its own Shares, as treasury shares, subject to the approval
of the Registrar,

TRANSFER OF SHARES .

The Shareholder may transfer hisiits Sharés in the FZE to a third party by
virtue of an instrument of transferin writing.

The instrument of transfer in writing shall be executed by the transferor and
the transferee (or their duly authorised representatives) in front of a
representative of the Authority and any other documents required by the
Authotity to register the transfer of shares shall be submifted to the
Authority at the same time,

A transfer-of the Shares shall not.bind the: FZE or any person until the date

on which the transfer of Shares is registered in the Companies Register
which is maintained by the Registrar.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

I the Shareholder dies, his personal representative shall be the only person
recognised by the FZE as having title to the Shares.

A person becoming entitled to a Share in consequence of the death or
bankruptcy of the Shareholder shall be registered as a Shareholder upon
giving notice to the FZE and upon registration he shall have the samae rights
as the previous Shareholder.

At the time a person is registered as a Shareholder in the Companies

Register, that person shall automatically agree to be bound by ihe

Memorandum of Association and the. Articles of Association of the FZE.

DIVIDENDS E
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5.1

5.2

53

5.4

55

56

57

‘ \eheque shall be a good discharge to the FZE,

Decision to Declare a Dividend

Subject to the Implementing Regulations, the FZE may by a decision of the
Directors, declare dividends.

Unless the decision of the Director(s) to déclare a dividend or the
Resolution to pay a dividend specify otherwise, the dividend must be paid to
the Shareholder on the date of the Resolution,

Where a dividend Is declared, or 3 distribution ‘made, or the same is
recommended to the Shareholder, the Directors must resolve that
immediately after a: dividend is declared or a distribution is made the FZE
should, on reasonable grounds, be able to pay its debts as they become
due in the normal course of business.

A dividend shall b.e recommended by the Directors to the Shareholder. The

Shareholder may by a Resolution declare a dividend which is higher than
the amount recommended by the Directors, however, such a dividend shall
only be payable to the extent the Directors are able to provids the decision
set-out In Article 5.3 in respect of the dividend-amount recommended by the

Shareholder.

Distribution meaning

In this Article 5, “distribution” means the distribution of assets of the FZE to

the Shareholder, including dividends, whether in cash or otherwise, except

distribution by way of;

(a) anissue-of bonus shares:

(b) redemption or purchase of the FZE's own Shares, oit of the share
capital or out of unrealised profits;

()  reduction of share capital, by extinguishing or reducing the liability of a
Shareholder on the Shares; and -

{d) distribution of assets to the-Shareholder on its winding up.

The Shareholder must return a distribution received from the FZE if the
distribution has been made in contravention of this Article 5. Where the
distribution received is in a form other than cash, the Shareholder must pay
a sum equal to the value of the distribution. [

Interim Dividends
Subject to the provisions of the Implementing Regulations, the FZE may, in

accordance with a decision of the Directors, pay interim dividends if it
appears to them that they are justified by the profits of the FZE available for

distribution.

Payment of Dividends

Any dividend or other moneys payable in respect of a Share may be paid by

cheque sent by post to the registered address of the Shareholder. Every
cheque shall be made payable to the order of the Shareholder, or to su

other person as the Shareholder may In writing direct, and payment of t

Nt
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o 5.9 No dividend or other moneys payable in respect of @ Share shall bear
A interest.

: 5.10  Any dividend which has remained unclaimed for twelve years from the date
when it became due for payment shall, if the Directors so resolve, be
forfeited and cease to remain owing by the FZE. The amount of the
dividend shall then be dealt with in accordance with the applicable

Accounting Standards.
6 DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
Powers of Directors

6.1 Subject to the matters that are required to be determined by the
Shareholder at a General Meeting as provided in these Articles and the
Implementing Regulations, the Directors are responsible for the
management of the FZE's business, for which purpose they may exercise
all of the powers of the FZE,

N 6.2 In the event the FZE proposes to create a security inferest as permitted

under the Implementing Regulations, to be issued by the FZE, the Directors
shall have the power to registér the security interest with the Registrar.

Appolntment and Removal of Directors

6.3 The FZE shall have at least orie (1) Director.

6.4 The first Director(s) shall be appointed by the Shareholder that incorporated
the FZE. A Director may be. appointed or removed, and any vacancy filled,
by a Resolution.

6.5 The FZE shall have a secretary, who shall be appointed and removed by a
Resolution (the Secretary). The offices of a Dirsctor and Sacretary may be
held jointly by a single person,

Conflict of Inferest

6.6 If a Director has a direct or indirect interest in a transaction entered into or
proposed to be entered into by the FZE or a Subsidiary of the FZE, which
interest, fo-a material extent conflicts or may conflict with the Interests of the

~ FZE and of which conflict the Director is aware, the Director musf disclose

to the FZE the nature and extent of the interest.

6.7 The disclosure under Article 6.6 must be made by the Director in writing to

the FZE, as soon as practicable after the Director becomes aware of the
circumstances which gave rise to the duty of the Director to make the

disclosure.
6.8 The transaction, in which a conflict arises as described in this Article 6 may

still be authorised by the FZE. The Directors shall refer the transaction to a
General Meeting and the Shareholder may by a Resolution confirm the

fransaction.
The FZE or the Shareholder may not claim a transaction to be void, or hold
a Director.accountable where:

; D ,‘% (a) the transaction is confirmed by a Resolution; and

P Do
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v (b) the nature and: extent of the Director’s interest in the transaction was
- accurately disclosed in reasonable detail in the notice calling the
General Meeting at which the resolution confirming the transaction is

passed.
Proceedings of Directors
610  To the extent that the FZE does not have more than one (1) Director,
Articles 8.11 to 8.24 do not apply and the Director may take decisions
without regard to Articles 6.11 1o 6.24.

6.11 Any decision of the ‘Directors: must be either a majority decision at a
meeting of the Directors or a decision taken in accordance with Article 6,12,

6.12 A decision of the directors is taken in accordance with this Aricle when all
eligible Directors (entitled to vote on a matter if it had been proposed at a
meeting) approve the form of a resolution in writing, copies of which have
been signed by each eligible Director or to which each eligible Director has
otherwise indicated agreement in writing.

Calling a Meeting
6.13 A Director may, and the Secretary at the request of a Director shall, call a

meeting of the Board.
6.14  Notice of any Directors’ or Board meeting must indicate:
(@) its proposed date and time;
(b) whereitis to take place;
{c) anagenda of items to be considered at the meeting;
(d) any supporting documents that should be considered before the
meeting; and

(e) if itis anticipated that directors participating in the meeting will not be
in the same place, how It is proposed that they should communicate
with each other during the meeting.

6.15  Notice of a Directors’ meeting must be given to each Director In writing at
™) least five (5) days from when the-mesting is scheduled to take place, unless
all of the eligible Directors (enfitled fo vote on a malter if it ‘had been
proposed at a meeting) approve to a shorter notice period.

Participation in Directors' meetings

6.16  Directors participate in a Directors’ meeting, or part of a Directors’ mesting,
when;
(a) the meeting has been called and takes piace in accordance with these
Articles, and !

(by they can each communicate to the others any information or opinions
they have on any particular item of the business of the meeting.

If all the Directors participating in a meeting are not in the same place, they
may decide that the meeting Is to be treated as taking place wherever any |

\ of them is located.
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Quorum
,,/ 6.18 The quorum for the transaction of the business of the board of Directors
shalil be two or any other number fixed by the Directors.

6.19 If the number of Directors is less than the number fixed as the quorum, the
continuing Directors or Director may act only for the purpose of filling
vacancies in respect of employees of the FZE or of calling a General

Meeting,
Alternate Director

6.20 Any Director may appoint any other Director or any other person approved
by the Directors to. act as his alternate and may remove the alternate
Director so appointed. The alternate Director shall perform all the functions
of his appointer as a Director only In the absence of the Director,

6.21 An alternate D’irec'tor shall be given notice of all meetings of which his
appointor is entitled to receive notice and Is entitled to attend and vote at

such meetings.

6.22  An alternate Director holds office for as iong as his appointor holds office
unless he is:-removed by written instrument by his appointor.

8.23  Any appointment or removal of an alterhate Director shall be given to the
Secretary of the FZE.

6.24  Unless otherwise provided, an alternate Director shall not be regarded as
the agent of his appointor but shall be responslblé for his acts or ornissions, -
‘Minutes

6.26 The Secretary shall cause minutes to be kept to record:

(a) all appointments of officers made by the Directors or Shareholder; and

(b) all proceedings at General Mestings of the FZE’s Shareholder and of
the Directors including the names of the Directors present at each
such mesting.

6.26 The Secretary is authorised by the FZE to certify true copies of the minutes,

or extracts. of the minutes. .

Manager

6.27 The FZE shall have a manager, whose name will be recorded In the
Companies Register and appear on the ficence of the FZE issued by the

Authority (the Manager).
Appointment and Removal of the Manager

6.28 The position of a Manager may be held by the Shareholder, Director or the
Secretary.

6.29 The Manager may be appointed or removed by a Resolution or by a
e decision of the Directors.

Powers of the Manager O%’ ;\
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I 8.30 The Manager is-authorised and directed by the Shareholder to manage the
# day to day affairs of the FZE and undertake all seti fities required for that
/ purpose including, but not limited to:

{a) the power to act for, in the name of and on behalf of the FZE:

(b) deal with and do all things necessary with the Customs Authority, in |
order fo clear any goods to be used by the FZE from the Customs
Authority; |

(c) deal with and do all things necessary with the relevant labour and
immigration departments at the Authority in order to register and |
cancel the employment of any employees of the FZE as well as any '
other matters concerning the FZE, its employees and the immigration ;
and labour departments; '

(d) sign and execute any lease agreement fo be entered into between the
FZE and the Authority in respect of the premises to be leased by the
FZE;

' (e) liaise and deal with the Dubai Electricity & Water Authority, district
cooling, du, Etisalat and any other utility companies, in respect of the !
supply of any utility services to the FZE: and ;

() sign and execute any application forms, letters, submissions or
requests fo the Authority or equivalent government authorities in any
other jurisdiction.

i GENERAL MEETINGS
71 The FZE shall hold a General Meeting as its annual General Mesting within
sighteen (18) months from the date of the FZE's incorporation. A General

Meeting shall then be held at least once every twelve (12) months

thereafter..

7.2 Any meetings of the Shareholder which is not the annual General Meetirg
shall be reférred to as an.extra-ordinary General Meeting.

Calling a General Meeting

The Directors may call a General Meeting to consider a matter that the

Directors determine requires consideration by the Shareholder. They muist

call a General Mesting, at least once every twelve (12) months in

accordance with Article 7.1,

Notice of a General Meeting

7.3 A General Meeting shall be called by a notice in writing of at least fourteen
(14) days and no more than two (2) months to the Shareholder, the
Directors and the auditor. If a meeting is called by a shorter notice than
fourteen (14) days, the meeting will be considered to be duly called if it Is so

agreed by the Sharsholder.

The notice should:

(a) specify the time, place and date of the meeting;
(b) provide the agenda of the meeting;

(c) state the general nature of the buginess of the meeting; -
CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
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7.5

7.8

7.7

7.8

8.1

8.2

(d) state the intention to propose a resolution, if any;

(e) permit the Sharsholder to appoint a proxy who may attend and vote
on-its or his behalf; and

(h include a copy of accounts and auditor's report, if relevant.

Quorum and Voting

A General Meeting of the FZE will be considered to be convened, and a
resolution will be considered to be passed at such General Meeting, by the
Shareholder issuing a decision in writing. If a decision is not taken in writing,
the Shareholder may provide the FZE with a record in writing of the

decision.

Proxy

The Shareholder is entitled to appoint a proxy for the purposes of
representing and voting on its or his behalf at a General Meeting. The
instrument of proxy and form of notice to be provided to the FZE for the
purposes of appointing a proxy, shall be In the form prescribed in the
Implementing Regulations.

Minutes

Minutes of General Meetings shall be prepared summarising all decisions
which have taken place at, as well as the decisions takén by, the General
Meeting. The mirutes shall be entered in a special register, be signed by
the Sharsholder and be képt at the FZE's head office.

The Shareholder may have access to the register referred to in Article 7.7,
either personally or by his/its duly authorised representative, and he/it may
also review the balance sheet, the profit and loss account and the annual
repert of the FZE.

ACCOUNTS
Requirement to prepare Accounts

The accounts of the FZE must be approved by the Diréctors and must be
examined and reported on by an auditor. Once the accounts are approved
and examined, the Manager must sign the accounts.

The Directors must, for each financial year, lay before a General Mesting:

(a) the accounts of the FZE, as approved by the Directors arid signed by
the Manager; and

(b) the-report of the auditor;

in order for the Sharehalder to consider and if deemed appropriate, approve
the accounts of the FZE for the relevant financial year.

If the Shareholder passes a resolution in writing-or at a General Meeting in
respect of a particular financial year, that:

(8 no accounts or auditor's report should be laid before a Geneéral
Meeting for that financial year; or

CERTIFIED TRU
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(®) no -auditor should be appointed, subject to ths approval of the
Registrar,

the requirement to lay the accounts and the auditor's report before a

General Mesting or appointing the auditor, will be waived unti the

commencement of the next financia) year.

Auditor Appointment

8.4 The Registrar shall maintain a list of approved auditors and the FZE must
appoint an auditor from the list for the purposes for which the auditor is
required under the Implementing Regulations, The FZE may appoint more
than one auditor.

8.5 The Shareholder may appoint an auditor. If no appointment Is made, the
existing auditor's term will be extended until a succeseor is appointed.

8.6 An auditor shall have the tight to access the records of the FZE that may be
required for the audit. The FZE shall provide all information the auditor
considers necessary in order to complete its audit.

8.7 An auditor is entitled to recsive notice of a General Meeting and to atlend a
General Meeting in respect of an agenda item that is in relation to a matter
that the auditor may be concerned with.

9 SECURITY INTERESTS

Share Pledge

8.1 The Shareholder may pledge all or any of its or his Shares owned by the
: Shareholder to a bank or financial institution in respect of a debt or

obligation of the Sharsholder, the FZE or any other person, By virtue of a
written Instrumenit, signed by the Sharsholder and the relevant bank of
financial institution, in a form approved by the Registrar.
Other Secutity Interests

9.2 The Directors may by a resolution of the Dirsctors at a Board meeting,
approve of the FZE granting as security for a debt or obligation of the FZE
or any other person:”

@) (@) @ conditional assignment of a lease agreement entered info by the
FZE, in favourof any person;

(b) a morigage over a building created pursuant to Law ro. 1 of 2002
Mortgage of Immovable Property Erected at Jebel Ali Free Zone,
issued by Maktourn Bin Rashid Al Maktoum, Ruler of Dubai, in favour
of a bank or financial institution;

(¢) apledge over the FZE's movable assets, in favour of any person; or

{d) any other security interest available under the laws of the UAE, in
favour of any person, and as permitted by the Registrar.

The instrument creating the security interest pursuant to Article 8.2, shall be
in a form approved by the Registrar. The security interest shall be created
at the time the instrument creating the security interest is entered into the
security register maintained by the Regjistrar.

WINDING UP e \
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The FZE may ne wound Up:

(@) by the Registrar; or

(b) yoluntarily, by @ Resolution.

102 The FZE may be wound up in @y one of the following cases:
(a) the period fixed for the duration of the FZE has expired;

{(p) when an event a@s _prescribed in these Articles takes place, which
results in the FZE beind required to be wound up; or

(c) the Shar.eholder gt a General Meeting, by a Resolution, ré
the FZE to be wound up voluntarily.

solves for

403  Subject to the implementing Regulations, if the FZE is to be wound up
‘ int one Of more

the
voluntarily, the Shareholder may by 8. Resolution, appo _
auditors a8 liquidators, whose .appcintment shall be notified to the Registrar.

14 'M\SGELLA’N’EOUS
11.1 Subject 10 the prior approval of the Authority ©of the Registral, the
Shareholder may by a Resolution, alter, cancel, sup_ple'ment, or vary any or

gll of these Articles, a8 it may consider appropriate from time to time.

112 The FZE shall comply with:
{a) the Memorandum and Articles of Association ofthe FZE;

(p) the fmplementing Regulations;
(¢) the r_prpyi,“sions of Federal Law No (2) of 2015, @8 applied by the
Registrar; and

(d) the ierms of the licence jesued by the Authority to the FZE.

1.3 AW dispute or claim ariges which is in any connected with the
Memorandum 0 Association of the FZE or this Articles of Assodciation of the

FZE shall pe referred to the Dubal Courts.

114  Matters not provided for in this ,Memo‘ran'dum, of Association of the FZE of
his Artictes of Association shall be subject to the implementing Regulations
and the pro jsions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015as applied atthe

discretion of the Registrar.

i/ We, the-undersigned, am desirous of forming a free zone establishment pursuant
to this Articles of Association and agree to pe bound by these Articles of Association.

A
S rtieus
SIGNED by
[ATCO’s attorneyl
on hehalf of g

ENGRO FERTILIZERS LIMITED /5 By
Sl

DATED:

b CERTIFIED TRU
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Schedule 1 — Definitions

In these Articles, the following terms shail have the meanings set opposite:

‘Accounting | means the international Financial Reporting Standards

Standards’ , Issued by the International Accounting Standards
| ' Board;
AED' . means UAE Dirhams, the lawful currency of the UAE:;
‘Arficles’ ! means these articles of association of the FZE;
'Authority’ " meansthe Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority;
- ‘Board’ means the board of Directors;
'‘Companies " means the register of companies maintained by the
' Register i Registrar;
L ! TN -
'‘Customs means Dubai Customs;
Authority’
"Directors' | means the directors of the FZE;
. 'FZE' | means the company to be incorporated by the

Shareholder pursuant to this Memorandum;

'General Meating' | means a géneral meefing of the Sharéholder duly
convened In accordance with the provisions of these -

Articles;
Climplementing | means the Jebel All Eree Zonie Gompanies
Regulations' Implementing ‘Regulations 2016;
'Manager' ! has the meaning given to it in Clause 6.27;
'Secretary’ { has the meaning given to it in Article 6.5;
‘Shares’ 3 means shares in the capital of the FZE;
'Shareholder’ ; means the shareholder of the FZE, particulars of which
| ‘are set.out in Article 2.2; ;
‘Subsidiary | means a body corporate:

i fifty per cent (50%) of whose directors can be elected
; by another company; or

- whose majority voting rights are directly or indirectly
§ controlled or owned by another company.
'Registrar’ ' means the person appointed as Registrar of _
companies pursuant to the Implementing Regulations:

‘Resoclution’ + means a resolution passed at a General Meeting by

. the Shareholder in person, or where proxies are
allowed, by proxy or a resolution in writing signed by
the Shareholder or its authorised representative; and

cﬁ}f"’ CERTIFIED TR
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AMENDMENT TO

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

OF
ENGRO EXIMP FZE
Incorporated on 04 August 2011 in the

Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai, United
Arab Emirates
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AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM & ARTICLES OF ASSOCATION
OF
ENGRO EXIMP FZE

’ Jebel Ali Free Zone Registration Number: 147994
(the “Company")

WHEREAS

A The Company was incorporated -on 04% August 2011 in the Jebel Ali free Zone, P.O. Box
261358, Dubal, United Arab Emirates.

B. The Registered address of the FZE is situated in JAFZA One Building, Tower A, Office No.
1123, Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

C. An amendment to the memoranduin and articles of association was entered into on the
October 2019.

IT 1S HEREBY AGREED:

Relevant part.of Aicle 2 of the Articles of Association shall be amended to read as follows:

Share Capital:

21  The capital of the FZE is One (1) Share with a value of AED 1,000,000. Share must be
paid in full by the Shareholder when allotted, unless the Registrar authorises a Share to

be-partly paid.

Detalls of the Shareholder:
22 The capital of the FZE is distributed as follows:

Name of Shareholder: Engro Corporation Limited

Nationality: Pakistan

Address: 7t & 8 Floors, The Harbor Front Building, HC-3, Marine Drive, Block 4, Clifton,
Karachi, 75600. Pakistan

Number of Shares: One (1)

Percentage: 100%

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the 'fSha‘reholde‘rs has signed the Addendum the day and year first

mentioned above.

Signed by:

ogjft’:%p

Mr. Mohamed Nazmy Ibrahim Elsayed|
For-and on behalf of
Engro Corporation Lirnited R

W ___,.,f’ R e
2 2 Py L
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AMENDMENT TO

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

~ OF
ENGRO EXIMP FZE
Incorporated on 04 August 2011 in the

Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai, United
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AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM & ARTICLES OF ASSOCATION

WHEREAS

ENGRO EXIMP FZE
{Amendment No. 2)
"Jebel All Free Zone Registration Number: 147994
{the “Company”)

A. The Company was incorporated on:04% August 2011 in'the Jebel Ali free Zone, having registered
office address at Office No. 1123, JAFZA One Building, Tower A, Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai,
United Arab Emirates.

B. The sole shareholder of the Conmipany has resolved to amend the memorandum and articlés of
association of the Company.

IT IS HEREBY AGREED:

1.1 The relevant partof Article 6.1 of the Articles of Association shall be amended to read as follows:

' “Powers of Direclors

6.7  Subject to the matters that are required to be determined by the Shareholder ata General
Meeting as provided in these Articles and the Implementing Regulstions, the Diréctors are
responsible for the management of the FZE's business, for which purpose they may
exercise all of the powers of the FZE. The Directors shail have the following authorities and
powers which shall be exercised jointly by alf the Directors of the FZE:

(@)

)

fc)

@

(e

422075391 .
Qassification://Confidential

lo collect, receive, enforce, relesse and give valid receipts and discharges for any
and all debis or-obligations of or owing to or by the FZE;

fo establish branches andfor incorporate subsidiaries andlor any type of the
comparies in the UAE or oulside of UAE and sign any docurnents including and not
fimited 1o memorariduni &rid articles of association and amendments therslo;
national/ local service agent agreements and ‘amendments thereto, sponsor
agreements, applicalion forms, insiruments or any resolutions:in connection thereto
andfo execute any resolution to appointresign and empower any officer, including
géneral imanager, director or-company secrelaly of such companies in which the
FZE Is 8 sharehoider or 8 branch which is owned by the FZE;

to buy, acquire, sell.or assign shares in companies inside oroutside the UAE in the
name - of the FZE and on its behalf lo enter into joint veniures agreements,

termination agreements, lo executé any resolution.or sign.share transtet/ acquisition
agreements, forms, undertakings, /efters, guaraniees, memorandum and articles of
associalion or any amendments thereto in any of the companies in which the FZE
owns or intends to acquire shares;

fo take alf necessary procedures, lo Sign any agresment, and/or resolulion|s) before
alf competent authorities, this includes without limitation, the Authorily, the Notary
Fublic, the Departments of Econormic Development, Ministry of Economy, Chamber
of Commerce, the Land Departments, Real Estate Regulator Authorily or any otfer
govermerital or semi-governmental authotities inside the UAE or outside of the
UAE;

1o grant the general mansgers and direclors of the company and branches in which

the FZE Is 8 shareholder; -ail financial, banking, management and commercigl,

powers Jncluding without limitation, the right to open, operate and close b8g




acecounts, pleage, morigage, sale and purchase, financisl securiies, gusrantees,
loans, banking facilities and other powers and suthorities without any limitations and
fo sign any resolutions or amendments to the memorandum of .association in
conhection therewith;

() toacknowledge and confirm all debts and lizbilities due to and payabie by the FZE
to-bank(s) or any third parties for any period-of time {whether or not in excess of
three years) and 16 execute and sign any confiimation in this regard:

(@) 1o buy. sublease; sell purchssé, exchangs; relesse, discharge, surrender,
mortgaye, pledge, charge, lease orotlierwise dispose or assign of any part of ihe
FZE's assels, propertles, lands, real estate unils, movable & immovable, for such
consideration and subject to such other terms and conditions and to sign gifi
lrahsfer, sale and purchase contracts oF any other agreements In conneclion
therewith,

() tosign and execute any lease sgreement or sublease agresment lo bé entered into
by the FZE of any nature whatsoever;

()  negotiate, sign and execute any agreement, contract, undertaking or indemnity of
any nalure whatsoever (including eny amendments thereto), including, any
dacument relating fo any commercial or banking fransaction and take s/l actions as
may be deemed necessary by the Direclors in refation to the foregoing;

4} toopen, close, operate bank account(s) of any type and make any amendments or
changes fo.ariy bank account of the FZE, or ahy account with any financial institution
including banks, and execute alf mandates, documents including the use of internet/
electronic-banking delivery channels;

(%) apply for; negotiate, execute, avail or obtain sccept any finance, credit facilities,
letlers of cred, finance facilities, import and.export facilities, loans, marlgages or
carry out any.bofrowing for the FZE, for any monetary amount from any bank in any
Jurisdiction, including the UAE (“Credit Faclliles®) on such lerms and conéilions as
the Directors may deem to be in the best interest of the FZE and to sign any
acceplance théreof and any subsequent amendment, modification ot revision to
such Credit Facilities or any part thereof arid all other refevant documents for and
on behalf of the FZE;

) to oblain all Credit Facilities including but not limited to. seciréd or unsecured
borrowings of monies, overdrafts, /étlers of crédit, trade receivables, discounting
facilities, lrust recelpls, bonds, foreign exchange, bank gusarantees and to do and
execlte all banking transactions and sign all documents with said bank for said
credit facilitfes (including, without limitation, any indemnitles or promissory notes);

(m)  to agree to all renewals; variations. (including revisions of allfimits and pricing of the
Credit Facilities), restructuring, substitution andfor interchenge of the Credit
Facilfties with full authority to accept, for and on behsif of the FZE, all-terms and
condjtions, including security, as may be required by the relevant barks (from whom
the FZE has obfained Credjt Faciliies) from time fo time, stsled in any subsequent
or supplemental lefters in connection with the Credit Facililies;

(n)  to arrange with and accept from. the relevant banks (from whom the FZE has.
oblained Credit Facilities) tfie provision-of any and all services or products by such
banks;

o)  tocary out any banking or finance related trensactions, to represent the FZE before
all the banks with which the FZE does business, avails any financial setvices, signs
any agreement, form, document, lefter; notice, or banking facilities or products from,
of maintains accournts with in any furisdiction, including the UAE, to exectlle any
documeniation or contract on behalf of the FZE, be it a commercial.or in refation fo
banking or finance, procure credit, lending, In relation to any transaction, faciily,
credit facility or borrowing, from any persor {legal or naiural) or any financial
institution, including a bank;

3
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(v} o sign any cheques, drafts; bills of exchange, payment orders or any oiher
negotiable instrurment of the FZE, of any value whatsoever, which may be deemed
necessary by such person, in relation to any mailer, from time io time;

(q)  lo do such acis that may be necessary or ancillary lo the above, for or before the
bariks;

() to enter into any foreign exchange contracts, currency swap agreements,
commodlly swap agreemenis, caps, collars; floors, optlens or other similar
agreements; or arrangements designed to. protect against and to require payments
based upon fluctustions in currency, commodily or other ssset values or any other
contract or agreement relating to sale or purchase and repirchase of any assets,
goods, services or commadities, or any option relating theréto orany combinstion
of the foregoing and any master agreement relating to or governing any of the
foregoing;

(s) topurchase, self; trade hold anymonetary currencies;

()  todo anyand all acts and things and to approve, complets, amend, supplement.
aifirm, sign, execiite or accepi (by electronic means or ofherwise) andlor deliver,
any forms, certificates, notices, instructions, communications, confirmations,
agreements or olher documents ancillary {0 or in conneclion with any transactions,
agreements and other documents provided by the FZE, from time to time;

{u}  toopen, opsrate and close invastment accounis inthe nsme of the FZE

(v)  to deal, negotiate or execute with any bank or financisl institute in refation to spot
and forwards foreign exchange transactions (*7i reasuty Jransaclions’);

W) to provide or give written and/or orsl Instructions (whether over the teleplione or -
otherwise) to the relevant banks In relation to Treasury Transactions, including
without limitation; conifirming, slgning arid delivering to such banks any transaction
record regarding the same;

(x]  to do any and"all acts and things and to approve, complets, amend, supplement.
affirm, sign, execute or-accept (by electronic means or otherwise) endlor deliver,
any forms, certificates, notices, insiniclions, .communications, confirmations,
agreements- or other documents ancillary: to or in- connection with .any Treasury
Transactions provided by the relevant banks to the.FZE From.time fo time;

{v)  topurchase, exchange, sell or otherwise deal in or with slocks, bonds and other
securities; and

(z)  onbehalf of the FZE;

(1)  incoporate any corporate entily on behalf of the FZE in any jurisdiction,
Including Jebel Alf Free Zone;

i)  subscribe to any number of shares (including any class of shares} in any
corporate entity in any jurisdiction;

(if)  acquire any nimber of shares as the Directors may deem fit in-any corporate
entity in any jorisdiction

(i)  establish oracquire any branch with any licensed activily in any jurisdiction,
including the Jebel Alf Free Zone as the Directors may deem fit;

(the corporate entity or branch incorporated and established by the FZE and
the corporate entily in which the FZE gequires or subscribes shares and
branch wiiich the FZE acquires sha/l be referred to as “Fulure Entitles” and
each a ‘Future Enlity”); ahd _
(v)  sell, assign-ortransfer any number of shares in any Future Entity (including &
' branchy) or Subsidiary of the FZE as the Directors may deem fil;
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{8a) on behsif of the FZF

(0 sign any resolution for incorporation or establishinent of any Future Entity
(including any Subsidiary), acquisition of any shares, subscription of any
shares, acquisition of any branch or sale, assignment of transfer of any shares
or branch in any Futire Entity-andfor Subsidiary of the FZE as the Directors
may deem fit:

(@} sign memorandum and articles of association snd any amendment thereto for

- any nature whatsoever, national/ local service agency agreements, of sny
Fulure Entily and/ or Subsidiary of the FZE:

()  appoint, remove or suspend any director, general manager, company
secretaty or any officer or employee of any Future Enlity or Subsidiary of the
FZE;

()  as a shareholder énd parent company in an Yy Future Entity or Subsidiary of
the FZE, negoliate and sign eny lease or sublease agreement with the
Aulhorily or any corporate entity;

(v)  sign any resolution of any nature whatsoever:

(v} appoint and remove attorneys and sutfiorised sighatories. of the FZE from
time to time; and

(bb) 1o delegate pait or all of the above-mentionsd powers 1o any person and revoke

such delegation as they deém fit.”

1.2 Therelevant part of Article 6.30 of the Articles of Association shall be amended to read as follows:

‘Powers of the Genersf Manager (Mansger)
6.30 The Manager Is authorised and directed by the Shareholder to msnage -the day to day
affairs of the FZE and undertake 5/l activities required for that purpose including, but not

limited to:

(8)  the power to act for, in the name of and on behsif of the FZE;

{6}  tocary on and manage the day-to-day operations of the FZE and to Sign on.behalf
of and represent the FZE and transact, manage and cary on and do all things
requisite necessary or in any manner connecled or having reference lo the afisirs of
the FZE;

(c) dealwith and do &l things necessaly with the Customs Authorily, in order to clear
any goods to be used by the FZE from the Gustoms Authorily;

(@)  deal witlh and do alf things necessary with the relevant labour and immigration
departments at the Authorily in order o register and cancel the employment of any
employees of the FZE as well gs ahy other matlers concerninig the FZE, its
employees and the immigration srid labour deparimernts;

(&)  represent the FZE before the Authority for ah ymatter whatsoever:

()  sign-and-execute any ledse agreement or sublease agreement o be entered into
between the FZE and the Authority or any person or corporate entity-in respect of
the premises to be leased or subleased by the FZE;

(g} liaise and deal with the Dubai Electricity & Water Authorlly, district cooling, du,
Etisalat and any other utility companies, in respect of the Supply of any utility
services to the FZE;

(h)  sign and execute any applicstion forms, letters, submissions or requests lo the
Authority or equivalent government aathorities in any other jurisdiction,

o delegate any of the above authorities to any person.as the Manager may deem fit,”

43207330,1
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The remalning terms and conditions of the Memorandum-and Afticles of Association shall be valid and
enforceable.

We, the undersigned, have incorporated the free zone establishment on 04% August 2011 and entered
into the Memorandum and Articles of Associatian, now entered this Amendment to Memorandum and
Aiticles of Association which is effective and supersedes and replaces all previous Memoranda on the
date it is signed by the shareholder, pursuant-to the Jebel Ali Free Zone Companies Implementing
Regulations 2016.

O‘ﬂ;—’é’— 1) 0S.202)

Engro Corporation Limited Date
R'epresentgd by: Mr. Mohamed Nazmy Ibrahim Eisayed

Signed;
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General Trading
License

Govemment of Dubai

License Details

License Number 128506

Licensee Engro Eximp FZE
Trade Name Engro Eximp FZE
Legal Status FZE (Limited Liabifity)
Issue Date 04/08/2011

Expiry Date 03/08/2023

Business Unit Jebel Ali Free Zone

C.,'Jany' Manager

Name of Manager

Address

Premises No.

Syed Kaleem Asghar Nagvi

TOWER A, JAFZA DUBAI UAE P.O BOX
262746

JABEL AL! -DUBA! United Arab Emirates
Zone: Business Centres World

Fioor Number
Building Name
Area Name

Activities

General Trading
Petrochemicals Trading

OFFICE NO. 1136, JAFZA ONE BUILDING,

~Jarza,

Jebel Ali Free Zone
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Free Zone Establishment Jebel Ali Free Zone

==

.
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CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION

This is to certify thal

EngroEximpFZE =
has been duly formed as a Free Zone Establishment
with limited fiability pursuant to Law No. 9 of 1992
and implementing Regulations issued thereunder
by the Jebel Ali Free Zone and Registered in the

FZE Register this

04-August-2011 —

This certificate is issued subject to and upon the
terms contained in the said Law and implementing
Regulations (as the same may be varied from time
to time) and of the FZE conditions issued or to be
issued by the Jebel Ali Free Zane from time to time
and the Licence issued or be issued by the Jebel
Ali Free Zone in respect of the aforementioned
free Zone Establish

Registrar
Jebel Ali Free Zone

Registralion No. 147994
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Jebel All Free Zone
Reference: 12536730 VYEFIVY . can sl
Date: 28/09/2022 VaYY 08 YA Ayl
Addressed To: Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority ;1 4ga s

Subject: Request Company Officers and Al g5 1Y) alaa plse L cila glas ilhaef gus gal)
Shareholders Information

Dear Sirs, c2myp duks Ao

The Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority hereby certifies AT e e gjald L,La o daad 55al bl Al 3g.ds
that Engro Eximp FZE has been formed and VAV A E gl ise dBhis duae < Lelnady Lguands

registered as an FZE on 04-08-2011, under the NEVARE (fnd B, iy
Registration No. 147994,

For your information, please find the below list of o3e 35 K0l dias yall parinall olanl) 4aitd slisf ¢y gans Sla gl )
relevant parties for the above Establishment.

FZE Directors Nationality

Ghias Uddin Khan Pakistan

Mazhar Abbas Hasnani Pakistan

FZE Manager Nationality

Syed Kaleem Asghar Naqvi Pakistan

KZE Secretary Nationalitv

Arlin Merchant Canada

FZE Shareholder Nationalitv No, of Shar Value of Share
Engro Corporation Limited Pakistan 1 1000000

The above party(ies) are authorized signatories for Assagall e 4 28 s il yiall s oMel g ) i) prial
the Establishment.

This letter has been issued upon Establishment O oded 5y &l Lun sl bl e gl AN, SURLT LIV )
request and without any legal liabilities on Jafza. ol olai Aty gl e Juals jall dilaiall Jaas
With regards, cal iaWh 838 gty | ylati

Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority & Sl 5al) dikaiad) I,

CERTIFIED TRuE COPY

4
Company Secrefary

This letter is valid for 30 days from the date of issue. It i Gabag Ve Saal dalla Al A o3a

For any further information, please contact Jafza Call Center at 800- e iy pMae dask 350 Jua¥) o o cibe ghaall 0y 25l

JAFZA (800-52392) 800-JAFZA (800-52392)

- This is a computer generated document which does not require signature ~

- For Verification: Visit https:/fedv.ezw.com and enter the EDV No. -14667704
iy - = BT -3
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
DIRECTOR’S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

The directors submit thelr repart together with the zudited financial statements of Engro Eximp FZE
(“the Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Incorporation and registration of office

The Company was Incorporated in the debel Ali Free Zone, Emirate of Dubai, on August 4, 2011 and
operaies under a trade license issusd by the Jebel All Free Zone Authority. The registered address of the
Company is BCW JAFZA 18 & 1 9, Office No 110, United Arab Emirates. The Company Is g wholly owned
subsidiary of Engro Corporation Limited ("ECL"), and the ultimate parent Company Is Dawood Hercules
Corporatlen Limited (“DHCL?). Both ECL and DHCL are incorporated in Pakistan,

Principal Activity
The Company is engaged in the business of trading commuodities,

Results
The results of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out on page 8 of the financiai

statemnents.

\

Director \
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholder of Engro Eximp
FZE

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements. present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Engro
Eximp FZE (the “Company”} as at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited

The Company’s financial statements comprise:
e the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

v & o @

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial

statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. '

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional

Accountants (including international Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (JESBA Code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the United Arab Emirates. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information which comprises the Directors’ report (but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or stherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Dubaj Branch), License no. 102451
Emaar Square, Building §, P O Box 11987, Dubai - United Arab Emirates
T: +971 (0)4 304 3100, F: +971 (0)4 346 9150, WA, pwe.com/me

Jacques Fakhoury, Douglas O'Maheny, Murad Alnsour and Rami Sarhan are registered as practising auditors with the UAE Ministry

of Economy

CERTIFIED TRUE GOPY

Company Secr?tary




pPwWcC
Independent auditor’s report to the shareholder of Engro Eximp
FZE

{continued)
Responsibilities of management and those charged with goverance for fhe firandial
statements {continued)

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going: concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in-accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

contro!l.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal-control.

s Evaiuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management:

. Coniclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists reiated to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubton the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in.the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate;,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions. are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concern.

3
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholder of Engro Eximp
FZE (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, incluging the
disclosures, arid whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements I
Further, we report that the financial statements of the Company comply, in all material respects, with the
applicable provision of the Jebel Ali Free Zone Companies Implementing Regulations 2018,

16 June 2022

Jacques Fakhoury
Registered Auditor No. 379
Dubai, United Arab Emirates
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

Note . 2021 2020
AED

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash at bank 4 587,522 462,879
Short term investments ] 30,774,800 34,214,038
Trade receivables 6 8,512,253 8,482,247

vances, deposits and prepayments 7 467,435 124,720

TOTAL ASSETS / 41,312,010 43,283,884
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital - 8 1,000,000 1,000,000
Contributed capital 9 17,033,744 17,033,744
Retained earmings 21,182,694 23,369,969
TOTAL EQUITY 39,216,438 41,403,713
LIABILITIES

Neon-current liability

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 44,178 16,628
Current liability

Trade and cother payables 106 2,051,384 1,863,543
Total liahilities 2,005,572 1,880,171
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 41,312,010 43,283,884

The annexed notes 1 o 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were authorized for issue on _{& Junc 2022 by the Board of the Directors of the Company.

Director
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Note 2021 2020
AED
Administrative, seiling and general expenses 11 (2,152,239) (258,958)
Non-operating income - net 12 812,926 875,883
Operating (loss) / profit for the year {1,539,313) 816,925
Finance cost 13 (38.489) (7,452)
(Loss) / Profit for the year (1.577,802) 609,473
Other comprehensive income for the year - .
Total comprehensive {loss) / income for the year {1,577,802) 608,473

The annexed notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
A

ooy -
Company Secretary




ENGRO EXIMP FZE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Share Contributed Retained Total

capital capital earnings
AED

1,000,000 17,033,744 23,957,167 41,990,911
. - 609,473 609,473

Balance as at January 1, 2020
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners:

Dividend for the year ended
Becember 31, 2019 {note 17) - - (1,196,671)  (1,196.,671)
1,000,000 17,033,744 23,369,969 41,403,713

Balance as at December 31, 2020

Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (1.677,802) (1,577,802)

Transactions with owners:
Dividend for the year ended

December 31, 2020 (note 17) - - (609,473)  (609,473)
Balance as at December 31, 2021 1,000,000 17,033,744 21,182,694 39,216,438

The annexed notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statemenits.
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACIIVITIES
{Loss} f Profit for the year s g

Adjustments for:

Provision for employees' end of service benefits
Non-operating income
Finance cost

Increase in current assets

Trade receivables
Advances, deposits and prepayments

Decrease in current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

income received on short term investments
Investments redeemed
Investments made

Net cash generated from Investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid

Finance cosis paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note 2021 2020
AED

(1,577,802) 609,473

27,550 .

12 (612,926) (876,028)
13 38,489 7.452
(2,124,689) (259,103)

6 {1,030,008) (1,978,967)
7 (342,715) -
(1,372,721) (1,978,967)

10 187,851 (82,822)
(1,184,870) {2,061,789)

(3,309,559) {2,320,892)
665,994 008,661 |

34,007,642 35,414,858
(30,621,472) (34,007,642)

4,052,164 2,405,877

17 (609,473) (1,196,671)
13 (38,489) (7.452)
(647,962) (1,204,123)

94543 (1,118,138)

462,879 1,582,017

4 557,522 462,879
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ENGRO EXimMP pzg
NOTESTOTHE F!NANCJALSTATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

1,

2.1

22

2.3

24

2.5

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

The Company has obtained General Trading License issued by the Jebel All Free Zona Authority and js
engagedinthe business of frading sommaodities,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financia) statements have been prepared in accordance and comply with the requirements of
International ¢ inancial Reporting Standards ('IF RS"). These financial statements have been Prepared under

the historical cost convention, excepl as stateq otherwise,

Going concern
The Parent Company has confirmed that it wilf provide continuing financial support and wiy ensure that the
Companyis able io meet its liabllities ag they fall due. T € supportfromthe ParentCompany is valig foraperiod
of atleast twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements,

New and amended standards applicabls during the year
The following amendments have been adopted by the Company for the first time for the financial vear

beginning on or after § January 2021 but do nof have Mmaterial impact on the Company:
*  Covid-19-Relateq Rent Concessions - amendments to [FRS 16; and
* nferestRate 3
S 16.

The amendments listed above dig not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods ang are
not expected 1o signiﬁcanﬂy affect the current or future periods,
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTESTOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

34

3.2

321

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

a. Functional and presentationcurrency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial
statemnents are presented in '"UAE Dirham’ {AED') which is the Campany's functional and presentation

currency.

b. Translation and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are franslated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the date of the fransactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or [oss.

Financiai assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a) those to be measured subsequently atfair value (either through OCl or through profit or loss); and

b) thoseto be measured at amortised cost,

The classification depends on the Company's business modei for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

A financial asset is measured at amoriised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold financial assets in order o
collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount ouistanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective Is achieved by both collecting

a)
contractual cash flows and selling financia! assets; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates lo cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Afinancial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measurad at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income.
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTESTO THEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

3

3.2
3.2.1

322

3.2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLINTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

For asseis measured at falr value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity Instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Company has made an irevacable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investmentat fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the
Cempany commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets nat carried at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are recognised in the profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cagh
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Measurement

Atinitial recognition, the Company measuresafinancialassetatitsfairvalue plus, in the case ofafinancial asset
not at fair value through profit orloss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs offinancial assets carried at FVPL are treated as expenses in profitor

loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characterisics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the

Company classifies its debtinstruments:

Amortised cost - Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interestincome from
thesefinancial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognifion is recognised directly in proflt or loss and presented in other gains / (losses)
togetherwithforeign exchange gains and losses. Impairmentlosses are presented asseparate line itemin

the staternent of comprehensive income.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - Assets that are held for coliection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised In profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gainorloss previously recognisedin OCi s reclassified from equity to profit orloss and recognised in other
gains / (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included In finance income using the
effective interest method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains / {other) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income.
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTES TO THEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

N
3.2
323

3.24

3.3

34

3.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Measurement {continued)

Fair value through profitor loss (FVPL} - Assets that do not meetthe criteria for amortised cost or FVOC!
are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debf instrument that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains / (losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Company, subsequently, measures all equity investments at fair vaiue. Where the management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value galns and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investments.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the

Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at F\VPL are recognised in other gains / {losses} in the profit or loss
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI

are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised costand FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether

there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by [FRS 8, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Financial liabilities

The Company recognises a financial fiability in its statement of financlal position when, and only when, it
becomes parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, the Company measures
a financial liability at its fair value minus, in the case of a financial fiability not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial liability. Financial liabilities are generally classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost
except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) which are subsequently measured at

fair value.
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle
either on a net basis or realize the asset and settie the llabllity simuitaneously.

Cash and cashequivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows include balances with bank.
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTESTOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

3,

3.6

3.8

3.9

4.1

&

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Trade recelvables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year oriess {crin the normal operating cycle ofthe
business if longer), they are classified as current assets, if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recognised at their face value,

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Provision far end of service benefits of employees is made in accordance with 1AS 19 - Employee Benefits
and the UAE Labour Law for the year of service up to the reporting date. The provision relating to employees'

end of service benefits is disclosed as anon- current liability.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
yearor less (orinthe normal operating cycle of the businessif longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2021 2020
AED
CASH AT BANK
Saving accounis (Note 4.1) 458 478 349,455
Current accounts 99,044 113,424
557,522 452,879

These saving accounts cafry returns ranging from 0.056% to 0.10% (2020: 0.04% to 0,10%) per annum.

2021 2020
AED

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Amortised Cost
30,774,800 34,214,038

Term deposits (Note 51)

5.1 The above term deposits carry interest at 1.50% to 1.75% (2020: 1.75% to 2.20%) per annum and have a

maturity of 12 months (2020: 12 months).
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTES TOTHEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

6.1

2024 2020
AED

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Due from related pariy:
EngroCorporation Limited (Note 16) 9,512,253 8,482,247

As at December 31, 2021, the aforementioned receivable balance was past due but not impaired.

2021 2020
AED
ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Advances to Suppllers 196,016 -
Deposits 130,795 120,295
Prepayments 140,624 4425
467,435 124,720

7.4 The above balances are unsecured and not impaired.

10.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company comprises of 1 authorised, issued and fully paid share of
AED 1,000,000.

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

During the year 2015, the Company received USD 3,539,137 (AED 12,998,250} from Engro Eximp (Private)
Limited (amalgamated later into Engro Fertilizers Limited), as advance against issuance of shares. Shares in
respect of this amountandthe previously advarced amountof AED 4,034,494 will beissued after completion of

the requisite legal formalities.

2021 2020
AED
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Accruediiabiiities 258,833 70,982
Payable to related party:
1,792,561 1,792,561

Engro Fertilizers Limited (Note 16)

2,051,394 1,863,543
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTESTOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

1.

12,

13.

14.
14.1

ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING AND GENERAL EXPENSES

Salaries
Legal and professional charges

Rent

Auditor's remuneration
Insurance

Staff recruitment and training
Travei

Communication and stationery

NON-OPERATING INCOME - NET

On financial assets
Income on short term investments
Loss on exchange revaluation

FINANCE COST

Bank charges

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BYCATEGORY
Financial assets at amortised cost:

- Cashatbank (note 4)

- Shortierm investments {note 5)

- Trade receivables (note 6)

- Deposits {note 7)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

- Trade and otherpayables (note 10)

2021 2020
AED
1,375,103 80,000
510,507 78,687
110,059 60,664
55,364 69,016
37,716 591
30,962 -
18,217 -
13,311 -
2,152,239 258,958
2021 2020
AED
612,926 878,028
i (145)
612,826 875,883
2021 2020
AED
38.489 7,452
2024 2020
AED
557,522 462,879
30,774,800 34,214,038
9,512,253 8,482,247
130,795 120,295
40,975,369 43,278,458
2,051,394 1,863,543
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTESTOTHEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEL)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

18,

15.1

Finaneial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: Market risk (including foreign currency risk
andinterest rate risk}, creditrisk and liquidity risk. The Company's overallrisk management program focuses
on having cost efficient funding as well as to manage financial fisk to minimize earnings volatility and

provide maximum return fosharehclders.

3)

b)

Market risk

i) Foreign currency risk

The Company does not hedge its expostre towardg.foreign currency risk. The Company is currently
not exposed to foreign exchange risk as majority of the Company's transactions are denominated

in USD, which is pegged to the AED.

i) Interest raterisk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in interest rates relates to term deposiis with bank which are fixed rate instruments. The
Company does not account for any fixed rate instruments at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rates would not affect profit or loss.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from deposits with banks and
financialinstitutions, deposits, advances, trade receivables and other receivables.

The Company's exposure fo credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The demographics of Company's customer base, inciuding the default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. The credit quality of the

financial assets is disclosed below:

2021 2020
AED
Cash at bank {Note 4) 557,522 462,879
Short term investments (Note 5) 30,774,800 34,214,038
Deposit (Note 7) 130,795 120,295

31,463,117 34,787,212

The carrying value of financial assets which are past due but not impalred are as under:

2021 2020
AED

Tradereceivables {Note 6) 8,512,253 8,482,247
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTESTOTHEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

1561  Financial risk factors (continued)

Rating Agency Rating

Longterm  Shortterm

2021
CiMB Bank Berhad Moody's A3 P-2
Habib Bank Limited JCRV AAA ATk
United Bank Limited JCR-VIS AAA A1+
MCB Bank Limited PACRA AAA A1+
Mashreg Bank Moody's Baai P2
Standard Chartered Bank PACRA AAA A-i+

¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding
from shareholders and related parties. The Company maintains flexibility in funding by keeping
adequate cash balances. The table below analyses the Company's financial liabllities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financlal position to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows, Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
Carrying
valie Contractual cash flows
Less than 12
At 31 December 2021 months Total
AED AED AED
Financial liabilities- af amortised cost
Due o related parties (Note 16) 1,792,561 1,792,561 1,792,561
Accrued fiabijities (Note 10) 258,833 258,833 258,833
2,051,394 2,051,384 2,051,394
Car\z;:g Contractual cash flows
Less than 12
At 31 December 2020 months Total
AED AED AED
Financial liabilities- at amortised cost
Due to related parties (Note 16) 1,792,561 1,792,561 1,792,561
Accrued liabilities (Note 10) 70,982 70,982 70,082
1,863,543 1,863,543 1,863,543

15.2 Capital risk management

The Company's objective when managing capitel are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintai

anoptimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTESTOTHEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2021

15.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

15,3 Fair value estimation

18.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. At December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020, the carrying amount of the financial assets and liabilities of the Company approximate their fair vaiues.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of Engro Corporation Limited and its associated undertakings. Related parties
also include retirement benefits funds and key management personnel. Details of transactions with related
parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewherg in these financial

stalements are as follows:

Transactions with related parties
Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Holding company

Engro Corporation Limited Expenses incurred on behalf of the
Holding Company
Reimbursements
Purchases and services
Dividend Paid

Associated undertakings

Engro Ferlilizers Limited Expenses incurred on behalf of the
Company

Engro Polymer and Chemicals Expenses incurred on behalf of the

Limited Company

Key Management personnel
Managerial remuneration

Retirement benefits funds

Balances due from refated parties Relationship

Engro Corporation Limited (Note 6) Parent Company

2021 2020
AED
1,617,712 1,984,352
651,268 -
30,908 14,908
809,473 1,196,671
- 53,802
- 39,520
780,338 48,000
18,714 -
799,052 48,000
2021 2020
AED

9,512,253 3.482,247
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTES TO THEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

16.

17.

18.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

2021 2020
AED
Balances due to related parties Relationship
Engro Fertilizers Limited (Note 10) Affiliate 1,792,561 1,792,561
DIVIDEND

During the year, the Company paid dividend amounting to AED 609,473 (2020: AED 1,196,671) in respect of
the year ended December 31, 2020.

IMPACT OF COVID-19

The COVID-18 pandemic has developed rapidly in 2020 and 2021, with a2 significant number of cases.
Measures taken by various governments to contain the virus have affected economic activity. The
Company has taken a number of measures to monitor and mitigate the effects of COVID-18, such as safety
and health measures for its people (such as social distancing and working from home). Management,
however, continues to monitor the evolving situation relating to COVID-19 and its impact on the business.

{a) Liquidity management

Global stress in the markets brought on by the COVID-18 crisis is baing felt globally through lack of liquidity
in funding markets, In this environment, management has already taken measures to manage its liquidity
carefully till the crisis is over, Management has been closely monitoring its budgets and forecasts on a
periodic basis. The Company has sufiicient cash reserves at 31 December 2021 to fulfil its financial

obligations and continue its operations.

(b) Going concern

There is no material uncertainty in relation io going concern since it has net current assets of AED
30,216,438 and ongoing financial support from its parent company.

Al this stage, the impact on the Company's business and results has not been significant and based on

experience to date the Company expecis this to remain the case.
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ENGRO EXIMP FzE

FINANCIAL STATEM

ENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE

STATEMENT OF FINANGIAL POSITION (UNAUDITED)

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

Curtrent assets

Trade recelvables

Deposits and prepayments

Short term investment - at amortised cost

Cash at bank
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share capital
Conlributed capitai
Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Non-current Hability
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Current liabilitios

Trade and other payables
Total abilitles

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Note

~N U

© o

10

June December
2022 2021
AED
35,633,517 9,512,253
532,767 467,435
29,423,902 30,774,800
1,738,082 557,522

67,329,168 41 312,010

1,000,000 1,000,000
17,033,744 17,033,744
19,087 482 21,182,504
37,101,226 30,216,438

44,178 44,178
30,183,764 2,051,394
30,227,042 2,095,572

67,329,168 41,312,010

The annexad notes 1 to 16 form an Integral part of these financial statements.

(o

Chiaf Exacutive Officer

\Y\/\/

Chief Fineficial Officer
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUBITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

June June
‘Note 2022 2021
AED :

Revenue 283,750,388 -
Cost of revenue {283,750,388) -
Gross profit/ (loss) o -
Administrative, sefiing and general expenses 11 {2,186,469) (708,000
Non-operating income 12 £98,236 343,000
Operating loss for the period {1,588,233) {363,000)
Finance cost 13 (526,978) (4,000)
Loss for the period (2,115212) (364,000)
Other comprehensive loss for the period - -
Total comprehensive loss for the period (2,115:212) ‘36&0002

The annexed notes 1 to 16 form an integral part of these financlal statements,

\ N

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

o

Sectetary

J
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ENGRO EXiMP FZE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS {UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

June June
Note 2022 o 2021
AED
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year {2,115,212) (384,000}
Adjustments for;
Interest Income 12 (598,238) (343,000)
Finance cost 13 526,979 1,000

e\ il
(2,186,469) (706,000)
{Increase)} / Decrease in current assets

N Deposits and prepayments {65,332) -
Trade and other receivables (26,121,264) (917,000)
{26,186.,556) {917,000)
Increase / (Decrease) In currant llabilities
Trade and other payablas 28,048,894 £16.000
1,862,298 {1,000)
Netcash utilised in operating activities (324,171) {707,000)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Income recelved on short term investments 424,682 55,000 |
Investments redeemed 47,732,554 3,673,000
Investments made {46,208,102) -
Net cash generated from investing activities 1,949,134 3728000

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCGING ACTIVITY

Finance costs paid (443,503) {1:000)

Net cash utllized in financing activities (443,503) (1;000)

. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,181,460 3,020,000
Y Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 557,522 465,000
Cash and cash oquivalents at end of the period 1,738,882 3,485,000

The annexed notes 1 to 16 forman integral part of these financial statements.

QQG“: \\Wv

Chief Executive Officer \ch(ag;lﬁncsal Officer
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Ny
R

Share Contributed Retained
capital capital eurnings Total
Balance as at January 1, 2021 1,000,000 17,033,744 23,369,969 41,403,713
“Total comprehensive income for the year - - {(1,577,802) (1.577.802)
Transactions with owners:
Dividand for the year ended
Dacember 31, 2020 - - (608,473) (608.473)
Balance as at December 31, 2021 1,000,000 17,033,744 21,182,604 39,218,438
Total comprehensive incoma for the period - - (2,115,212)  (2,115,212)
Transactions with owners;
Dividend for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2021 = S S -
Balance as at June 30, 2022 1,000,000 17.033.744 19,067,482 37!101i226

The annexed notes 1 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o N

Chief Exscutive Officer ChielFinapefal Officer
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1

21

22

2.3

24

25

LEGAIL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Engro Eximp FZE (the Company') was incorporated in the Jebel Ali Free Zone, Emirate of Dubai, on
August 4, 2011 and operates under a trade licanse Issued by the Jebel All Free Zone Authorily. The
registered address of the Company is BCW JAFZA 18 & 19; Office No 110, United Arab Emirates. The
Company is 2 wholly owned subsidiary of Engro Corporation Limited ("ECL"), and the ultimate Parent
Company is Dawood Hercules Corporatfon Limited (*"DCHL"). Both ECL and DHCL are incorporated in
Pakistan.

The Company has obtained a General Trading License Issued by Jafza Jebel All Free Zone and Is
sngaged In the business of trading fertilizers,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply with the requirements .of
international Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS'), These financial statemants have been prapared
under the historical cost convention, except as stated otherwise.

The preparation of ths financlal statements In conformity with the requirements of IFRS requiras the uge
of certain criical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgament in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Esfimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are baged on the expectation of fulure events that are believed to ba reasonable under
the circumstances. The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
résulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Currently,
there are no significant estimates or assumptions that could have a material impact on the financial

statements.

Golng Concemn

The Parent Company has confirmed that it will provide continuing financial support and will ensure that
the Company Is able to meet its liabilities as they fall due, The support from the Parant Company is
valld for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statemsnts.

New and amended standards applicable during the year

These new standards and amendments do not have any significant impact on the Company's financial
reporting and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial statements.

Standards that are not yet effective and have not beeon early adopted by the Company
New standards and other amendments fo published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet

effective are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's financial statements and,
therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial statements,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applled in the preparation of these financial statements. are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented.

CERTIFIED TRUE CGF"Y!:
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 38, 2022

3.4

3.2

3.2.1

Forelgn currency transactions and transiation
a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates {'the functional curreney’). The financlal
statements are presented in "UAE Dirham' AED') which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

b} Translation and balances

Forglgn currency transactions are transiated into the functional cumensy using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions or valuation where lems are re-measured, Forelgn
exchange gains and losses resulting from the seftlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchangs rates of monetary assets and liabllities denominated In foreign
currencles are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Classtfication
The Company classiies its finencial assets in the following measurement categories:

a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value {either through OCI or through profit or loss); and

b) those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows.

A financlal asset Is measured af amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

8) {he financial asset is held within 2 business model whose objactive is to hold financial assets in
ordér fo collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contrattual terms of the financlal asset give risa on specified dates to vash flows that are solaly
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset Is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective Is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financlal assets; and

b} the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solsly
payments of principal.and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

1



ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Afinancial asset is measured at fair value through profit or Joss unless it is measured at amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income.

For assets measured at fair value, galns and losses will either be recorded In profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this wil
depend on whether the Company has made an imevocable election at the time of injtiat recognition to
account for the equily investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCi).

322 Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financlal assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which
the Company commits 1o purchase or sefl the asset, Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus trarisaction costs for all financlal assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.

Financlal assets carried at fair value through profit or foss are inltially recognised at fair valus, and
transaction costs are recognised In the profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the tights
ta receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transfsrred and the Company
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carled at
amortised cost using the effactive interest method. '

3.2.3 Measurement

At initlal recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair vaiue plus, In the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), fransaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financlal asset. Transaction costs of financial assets canied at

FVPL are treated as expenses in profit or loss.

Dabt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classlifies its debt instruments:

- Amortised cost - Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where thosa cash flows
represent solely paymants of princlpal-and interest are: meseured at amortised cost, Intarest income
from these financial assats is Included in finance Income using the effective interest method. Any
gein or loss arising on derecognltion Is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains / {fosses) togethser with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impalrment losses aro presented
as separale ling item in the statement of profit or loss.

- Falr value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, whare the assets cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are mesasured at FVOCL Movements in the canying
amount are faken through OCI, excapt for the recognition of impaiment gains or losses, interest
Income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised In profit or logs, When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equily to profit or loss and recognised in other gains / (josses). Inferest income
from these financlal asselc Is included In finance income using the efisctive interest method.
Forelgn exchange gains and losses are presenled in other gains / (other) and Impairment axpenses
are presented as separate Iine am in the statement of profit or loss,

(';%<‘CERTEFEED TRUE COPY
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

324

3.3

34

38

38

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) - Assefs that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOC!I are measured at FVPL. A galn or loss on a debt instrument that is subsaquently measured
at FVPL Is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains / {losses) in the period in
which it arises.

Equity Instrumenis

The Company, subssquently, measures all equity invesiments at falr value, Where the management
has elected to present falr value gains and losses on equity investments In OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognlition of the
investments. Dividends from such Investments continue to be recognised in prefit or loss as other
income when the Company's right to receive payments is established,

Changes in fair value of financial assets.at FVPL are recoghnised in other gains / (fosses) in the profit or
loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of Impaiment lossas) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impeirment

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments caried at amortised cost and FVOCL. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whiether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies. the simplified approach permitted by IFRS B8, which
requlres expscled Iifetims losses to be racognised from Initial recognition of the recelvables.

Financial liabilities

The Company recognises a financial liability In its statement of financial position when, and only when,
it becomes parly fo the contractual provisions of the Instrument. At initial recognition, the Company
measures a financlal liabllity at its fair value minus, in the. case of a financial llabliity not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the ‘aequisition or issue of the
financial Tiability. Financlel liabilities are generally classified as subsequently measured at amortised
cost except for financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) which are subsequently
measured at fair value,

Offsetting of financial assets and fiabllities

Financial assets and fiabliities are offset and the net amount is reported In the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recogrilsed amounts, and there is an
Intention to settle either on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liabillty simultanecusly.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows include balances with bank .

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or senvices performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection Is expected in one year or fess (or in.the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets, if not, they are presented as non-

current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair valus and subsequently measursd at amertised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impam__\

nobho—
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE }
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

8.1

6.1

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recognised at their face velue.

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Provision for end of service benefils of employess is made in accordance with the UAE Labour Law for

the year of service up to the reporting date, The.provision-relaling to employees' end of service benefits
is disclosed as a non-current liability.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for geods or services that have bsen acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabiliies.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured al amortised cost
using the effective intersst method,

TRADE RECEIVABLES
June Dscember
2022 2021
AED -
Engro Corporation Limited 10,168,861 8,512,253
Trade Debts - Exports 25,464,656 -
35,633,517 9,512,253

As at.June 30, 2022, the aforementioned receivable was past due but not Impaired,

June December
2022 2021
AED
ADVANGES, DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENTS
Advantes to Suppliers 208,469 196,016
Deposit 257,848 130,795
Prapayment £6,450 140,625
532,767 467,438
The above balances are unsecured and not impaired.
June December
2022 2021
AED
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
at Amortised Cost
Term Deposits {Nofe 6.1} 29,423,902 30,774,800

The above term deposits carry interest at 1.75% to 5.50% (2021: 1.50% to 1.75%) per annum.

ERTIFIED TRUE COPY
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 39, 2022

74

10

11

June Decembear
2022 2021
AED
CASH AT BANK
Saving accounts 860,822 458,478
Current accounts 878,159 98,044

1,738,982

—_——e e e

These camy retum ranging from 0.05% lo 0.10% (2027: 0.05% to 0.10%) per annum

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capltal of the Company comprises of 1 authorised, issued and fully. paid share of AED
1,000,000.

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

During the year 2015, the Company received USD 3,538,137 (AED 12,998,250) from Engro Eximp
(Private) Limited (amalgamated later Into Engro Fertllizers Limited), as advance against Issuance of
shares. Shares In respect of this.amount and the previously advanced amount of AED 4,034,494 will be
issued after completion of the requisite legal formalities.

Jure Decembar
2022 2021
: - AED
TRADE AND OTHER PAYARLES
Trade Creditors 26,642,068 -
Advances from customers 1,619,378 -
Accrued liabilities 122,224 258,833
Payable to related party:
~ Engro Fertilizers Limited 1,800,094 1,782,561
30,183,764 2,051,394
June June
2022 2021
AED
ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING AND GENERAL EXPENSES
Saiarles 1,363,486 90,428
Travel 279,165 -
Rent, rates and taxes 193,101 20,069
Legal and profassional charges 110,243 505,503
Subscriptions 71,130 -
Communication, statlonery and other office expenses 56,548 -
Staff meetings and conferences 49,532 -
Corporate Events 34,193 -
Insurance 17417 -
Auditor's remuneration 11,654 -
2,186,469 708,000




ENGRO EXIMP FZE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

12

13

14

14.4

15

16.1

i5.2

NON-OPERATING INCOME

On financial asssts

Income on shiort term investments
FINANCE COST

Bank charges

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financlal assets at amortised cost:

= Deposits (Note 4)

« Trade recalvables {Note 5)

- Short term Investments (Note 6}

- Cash at bank (Note 7)

Financlal liabilitles at amortised cost:

- Trade and other payables

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate rsk and other price risk), credit risk and Hiquidity risk. The Company's overall risk
management program focuses on having cost efficient funding as well as fo manage financlal risk to

June June
2022 2021
e AED ;
598,236 343,000
598,236 343,000
526,980 1,000
526,980 11000
June Decomber
2022 2021
AED
257,848 130,795
35,633,517 9,512,253
29,423,902 30,774,800
4,738,982 657,522
67,054,249 40,975,370
30,183,764 2,051,304
30,183;764 2,051,394

minimize eamings volatility and provide maximum return to sharsholders.

a) Market risk

i} Forelgn currency risk

The Company does not hedge its exposure towards foreign currenicy risk. The Company is
curently not exposed to foreign exchange risk as majority of the Company’s transsctions are
denominated in USD, which is pegged to the AED,
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

I}} interestrate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cesh fiows of a financial
instrument will luctuate because of changes In market interest rates. The Company's axposure
to the risk of changes iIn interest rates relates to term depostis with bank which are fixed rate
Instruments. The Company does.not account for any fixed rale instruments at fair value through
profit or loss, Therafora, a change in interest rates would not affact profit or loss

i} Other price risk

Price risk {s the risk that the falr value or future cash flows ofa financlal instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (cther than those afising from currency risk or Interast

™ rate risk). The Company is not exposed to equity security price risk as it has no Investments in
equity interest of any company.

b) Credit gk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss fo the Company if a customer or counterparly to a financial
Instrument fails 1o meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from deposits with banks
and financial inslitulions, deposits, advances, trade receivables and other receivables.

The Company's exposure to credit risk Is influenced malnly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The demographics of Company’s customer base, including the default fisk of the Industry
and cauniry in which customars operate, has less of an influence on credit risk.

The carrying value of the financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as under:

June December
2022 2021
AED
i Deposits 257,848 130,795
Short term investments 29,423,902 30,774,800
Cash at bank 1,738,082 557,522
31.420i732 31,463,117

The carrying value of financial assets which are past duse but not impaired ars as under:

June Decembaer
2022 2021
AED
Trade receivables 35,633,517 9,512,253

The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with referenice to their historical performance with no
or negligible defaults in recent history, however, no losses incurred. Only banks and financial
institutions which are independently rated and with high reputation are accepled. The credit quality of

the financial assets held with banks can be Wﬁnw fo extemal credit ratings as follows:
®)

<\ .
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

156.3

154

CIMB Bank Berhad
Hablb Bank Limited
United Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
Mashreq Bank

Standard Chartered Bank
Dubai Islamic Bank

Bank Al Habib Limited

¢) Liquidity risk

Rating
Agency
Moody's

S&P

JCR-VIS
PACRA
Moody's

S&P
Fitch
PACRA

Rating
Long term Short term.
2022
A3 p-2
B B
AAA A1+
AAA A-1+
Baai P2
A+ A1
A F1
AAA Al+

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations
assoclated with financial liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk managemant implies maintaining sufficlent
cash and marketable securities and the avallabllity of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. All financlal liabilities of the Company are payable within 12 months of
the date of the financial statement, except for employees' end of service benefit. L

Capital risk managemeiit

The Company's objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as
a going conesm in order to provide retums for shareholdars and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capilal-structure fo reduce the cost of capital.

The Company does not have any borrowings as at June 30, 2022 (2021: Ni).

Fair value estimation

Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiabifity In an orderly
transaction between market participants: at the measurement date. At June 30, 2022 and December 31,

values.

2021, the camying amount of the financial assets and liabilities of the Company approximate their fair
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ENGRO EXIMP FZE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

16 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of Engro Corporation Limited and its associated undertakings. Related parties
also Include retirement benefits funds and key management personnel. Detalls of transactions with
related partias during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial
stalements are as follows:

June June
2022 2021
AED
Nature of relationship Nature of transactions
Holding company
Engro Corporation Limited Expenses incurred on
behalf of the Holding
Company 802,996 -
Relmbursements 202,770 -
Purchases and services 37,173 -
Asgsociated undertakings
Engro Fertilizers Limited Reimbursements 7,531 -
Sales 41,401,800 -
Efert Agritrade{Pvt} Limited Sales 165,516,868 -
June June
2022 2021
AED
Nature of relationship Nature of transactions
Engro Polymer and Chamicals
Limited Sales 69,258,465 -
Purchases 5,267,584 -
Koy Management
personnef
Managerial remuneration 949,018 80,428
. h DO Y
Chief Executive Officer Chisf Finapefal Officer
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12@G. Gold Tower Trade License Numbe)

. Cluster |, Jumeirah Lake Towers ~ DMGC-822132
Dubai, Unitad Arab Emirates

engro Ing fze

19 October 2022
To:

The Registrar

Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority
54B Fazl-e-Haq Road, Blue Area
Islamabad, Pakistan.

Subject: Requirement of consents and approval for the licence of sale of natural gas
under Rule 4 of the NGRA Rules, 2002.

Dear Sir,

We would like to inform you that Engro LNG FZE (the “Applicant’) has been recently
incorporated for the purpose of engaging in the sale of natural gas.

Other than the license for sale of natural gas, to our knowledge the Applicant does not require
any consents under the applicable law in order to conduct the regulated activity of sale of

natural gas.

Regards,

D hwachad

Arlin Merchant

Company Secretary

Engro LNG FZE engro.com

an Engro Carporation Limited Group Company



Details of Technical & Financial Expertise

Human Capital

Engro Group is a pioneer in Pakistan's LNG sector and possesses market depth and commercial expertise
for the gas marketing business developed over a decade of developing projects and business in Pakistan's
LNG sector. In addition to LNG, Engro has a history of excellence and track record in developing and
operating new business in energy sector of the country such as Pakistan's first power plant operating on

permeate gas, Pakistan's first coai mine in Thar and Pakistan's first power plant on Thar's lignite coal.

Through these ventures as well as Engro’s legacy business of Fertilizers, Engro has experience in
undertaking commercial management of fuel supplies. Engro LNG FZE through Engro's various
businesses has access to expertise available in commercial management of energy businesses. Engro
LNG FZE's parent company, Engro Eximp FZE itself is an international commodity trading business active
in sourcing and supply of various petrochemicals. Engro Eximp FZE hence not only has experience in
international commodity markets but alsc has deep connections with some of the majof international
preducers in the region for petrochemical sourcing who are also producers of Oil & LNG, notably Qatar

Energy and Abu Dhabi National Oil Company.

In addition to available in-house expertise, Engro LNG FZE has also engaged Maian Energy, an entity
comprising of veteran international LNG experts with decades of commercial and operational management
in LNG sector. Maian Energy brings deep international experience in areas ranging from project origination,
LNG trading and sourcing, gas sales to actual cperational management of LNG to RLNG supply chain.

Engro LNG FZE derives further depth and experience through recent partnership with Excelerate Energy
who is an internationai integrated LNG company with business operations ranging from FSRU operations
to gas marketing. Excelerate with experience of both infrastructure as well as molecule management

specially in emerging markets will add significant value and expertise to this venture.

Attached with this document are CVs of key personnel of Engro LNG FZE as well as a letter of intent from

Maian Energy on collaboration with Engro LNG FZE.

Financial Strength

Engro LNG FZE is part of Engro Group who is Pakistan's leading conglomerate with international presence.
At the end of last financial year, December 31, 2021, Engro Corporation had a turnover of USD 1.9 billion
and market capitalization of USD 0.9 billion. The following image shows Engro Corporation’s business



interests as well as Engro Corporation’s role in supporting and governing subsidiaries of which human

resources and capital are important dimensions.
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Figure 1 - Engro Corporation’s Roles as a Parent

Engro Corporation’s financial reports can be accessed at www.engro.com
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Contact

kaleem.asghar@gmail.com

www.linkedin.com/in/kaleem-
aSghér1971 (Cinkedin

Top Skills

Supply Chain Management
Petrochemical

Business Strategy

English (Fuil £

Urdu {Native or Bilingual

Publications

COMPETITIVE ANALYSIS OF
CANADIAN LNG (Co-Author)

Kaleem Asghar

Engro Eximp FZE, trading arm of Engro Corp
Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Summary

Professional with rich experience LNG & Petrochemicals Industry
with focus on LNG origination, analytics, re-gasification, terminal
development and distribution.

Experience

Engro Eximp FZE

Chief Executive Officer
December 2020 - Present (1 year 10 months)

ClipperData

Director LNG Analytics
January 2018 - November 2020 (2 years 11 months)

* Management of LNG Analytics, for daily, weekly & monthly LNG price, trade,
demand/supply analysis.

BGN International DMCC

2 years 8 months

Business Crigination Consultant

November 2016 - December 2017 (1 year 2 months)

QOakville, Ontaric

* Responsible for business origination, revenue generation and key account
management for Scuth Asia regional markets.

* Managing Oil & Gas, petrochemical, polymer and chemical product.

* Working with cross-functional team for LNG business origination.

Regional Business Manager, South Asia

May 2015 - November 2016 (1 year 7 months)

Pakistan & Dubsi

* Responsible for business origination, revenue generation and key account
management for regional markets of Pakistan, Bangladesh, Sri Lanka,
Myanmar, Afghanistan and India.

* Managing Oil & Gas, petrochemical, polymer and chemical product.
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« Working with cross-functional team for LNG business origination for Pakistan,

UAE and Turkey.

Elengy Terminal Pakistan Limited, Engro Corporation

Business Development Manager, LNG & Chemicals

January 2014 - March 2015 (1 year 3 months)

Karachi, Pakistan

Working as Business Development Manager, for Pakistan first ever LNG
import terminal, | am responsible for LNG business origination & key account
management along with identification and development of new business
relationships and opportunities through establishing long term strategic
alliances, the business revenue size expected to be around $100 million in the
first phase.

My job responsibility entails:

+ LNG import terminal business generation

* LNG trading operations

* LNG for power sector development.

» Negotiation and management of LNG HOAs, SPAs, MSAa and TSAs

(Terminal Service Agreement).

Engro Eximp Private Limited
Business Head, Commodities Trading
August 2013 - January 2014 (6 months)

Responsible for Commodities trading business along with identification and

development of new product lines. Job responsibilities entail:

Fertilizer Products: Trading of Phosphates, Potash and Zinc Sulphate products

into Pakistan.

Food Commodities: Products are Palm oil, sugar and wheat.

Energy Commodities: Management of coal & LPG Trading in Pakistan.

Port Operations: Management of port operations for fertilizers, food and energy

commodities.

Engro Polymer & Chemicais Limited
14 years 11 months

Business Planning Manager
January 2011 - July 2013 (2 years 7 months)

As a head of Business Planning department, responsible for Export & Supply
Chain facets for the company, covering the petrochemical products via

structured Business Intelligence support.
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Business Inteiligence

* Key Products Covered: Crude Oil, Cracker Feed Stock (Naphtha, Ethane,
Propane, Butane, Gas Oil), Olefins (Ethylene & Propylene), Intermediaries
(EDC & VCM), Poly Olefins (PE & PP) and Chlor Vinyl Products (Chlorine,
Caustic Soda, Sodium Hypochlorite & PVC Resin).

* Focused Markets: Middle East, North East Asia, South East Asia, Indian Sub
Continent, Africa, Europe & North America

* Market information compilation and analysis on International regional wise
market and price trends, demand estimation and projections, trade inflow and
outflow, supply situation and freight cost analysis.

* Petrochemical product chain cost and margin analysis based upon different
feed stock, location & operating rates.

* Complete understanding of target market in term of custom regulations and
trade regulations.

* Analysis of domestic market for Polymer and Caustic products covering
demand drivers and out look,

* Attending all the major Petrochemical conference focused on Middle Eastern
and Asian markets for networking establishment and information updates,

* Strengthening of networking with major publication & research firm covering

Petrochemical industry.

* Export forecasting, decision making and management worth of $40 million
per annum (15,000 MT of PVC resin, 50,000 MT of EDC and 5,000 LMT of
Caustic Soda)

* Identification of new markets.

* Compilation and understanding of demand seasonality for Middle East and
Asian markets for Polymer, EDC and Caustic Soda.

* ldentification and networking with trading partners and end users in target

markets.

Supply Chain
* Procurement of Ethylene approximately 72,000 MT worth of $72 million on

annual basis
* Procurement of VCM and EDC on spot basis,

Senior Advisor, Planning
March 2009 - December 2010 (1 year 10 moenths)

After expansion and back integration phase, which has resulted in multiple
products and added more challenging complexities in the businesses, this
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new group has been formed. As a head of this group | am managing 4 team

members and my job entails:

1. Development and Management of Business Intelligence
2. New Business Development

3. Exports Forecasting and Management

4. ERP Continuous Improvement & Utilization

5. Supply Chain Management

6. Government Relation & Networking

7. Product Pricing & Margin Analysis

Development and Management of Business Intelligence

Development of structured methodology for the analysis of domestic and
international markets covering regional demand and supply situation, price
trends, domestic sales, domestic demand drivers, competitors, import data,
competing products sales and customers covering from Crude Oil & Gas all

the way to petrochemical intermediaries and polymers.

Export Forecasting and Management
| am responsible for the forecasting and management of export of PVC Resin,
Caustic Soda and EDC worth of worth of $36 million per annum.

Supply Chain Management
Responsible for ensuring adequate supply of Ethylene, EDC and VCM for
the production of PVC resin. | manage and negotiate procurement worth $70

million per annum.

Product Pricing & Margin Analysis
Development of pricing proposal & pricing announcement for domestic market
based upon business intelligence data, sales forecast and production outlook.

Business Development
| am responsible for the identification of new business along with development

of it complete feasibility and action plan.

ERP Continuous Improvement & Utilization
Taken initiative of enhanced ERP functionality usage in the company through
development of reports in Oracle and reduction of data entry in excel sheet.

Government Relation & Networking
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Responsible for managing all the issues for the company pertaining to sales

tax or trade poiicy on GoP ievel.

Senior Market Develcpment Advisor
July 2008 - March 2009 (9 months)

As a head of Market Development my primary responsibility is to iook after
the strategic dimension for the marketing of PVC resin and domestic PVC
industry. My role entails management of four sections, Micro Irrigation, PVC
Geomembrane, Pipes and new product development. Managing a team of 27
team members positioned in all four provincial capitals. Under the new product
development | am responsible for the development of complete business
model for new PVC downstream products. This role has exposed to all the

dimensions of industrial, rural and comsumer marketing.

Market Development Advisor
June 2007 - July 2008 (1 year 2 months)

» Sales of Drip Irrigation System and PVC geomembrane through local player
development,

* New product development support to domestic industry.

« Business Development and technical up-gradation support to domestic PVC
resin Industry.

= Sales support to domestic industry for end product promotion.

* Collaboration with PVC resin down stream product service industry.

* Identification of international players for the technical support for Drip

Irrigation and PVVC Geomembrane.

Group Leader, Agriculture Sector Applications
January 2006 - June 2007 (1 year 6 months)

Responsible for the development of two new products, Drip Irrigation System &
PVC Geomembrane.

» Complete product package development with sales and after sales support.

» Service industry development for Drip lrrigation System and PVC

Geomembrane.
» Technology collaboration with international manufacturers for product supply

and support for Pakistani companies.
+ Development of rural channel for Drip lrrigation System and PVC

Geomembrane.

Senior Market Development Officer, Micro lrrigation
July 2003 - December 2005 (2 years 6 months)
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- Area of responsibility was sales management of Drip Irrigation System &
PVC Geomembrane for Sindh & Balochistan.
« Management of two service companies for sales generation and completion.

« Managed the team of ten people and two regional offices.

Market Development Officer, Micro Irrigation
July 2002 - June 2003 (1 year)

- Responsible for the development activities of Drip Irrigation System for Sindh
region.
« Development of strategic partners for the sales & marketing of Sindh

province.

System Officer, Information Technology
September 1998 - June 2002 (3 years 10 months)

My job responsibilities were management and lead the functions which entail:
+ Supervision of Network Administrators and Developers

» Management of Oracle Applications (ERP})

« Local Area Networks (LAN) and Wide Area Network (WAN) management

» Preparation of annual IT budget

» Monitoring and enforcement of Information Security Policy and Disaster

Recovery Plan
« Procurement of IT related Equipment, Software and Services.

During my tenure we successfully managed to implement Oracle Application
based upon the requirement of Sales team. | was the project leader of the
team which developed Sales procedure and implementation of the procedure

for PVC resin domestic sales and export.

Engro Chemicals Pakistan Limited
1 year 3 months

Sales & Distribution Officer, Fertilizers
January 1998 - September 1998 (9 months)

» Sales operations of fertilizer products for Daharki region.

« Management of dealers’ network
» Management of warehousing & logistics operation for Regional Office.

Market Planning Officer, Fertilizers
July 1997 - December 1997 (6 months)

Joined Engro Chemicals Pakistan Limited in July 1897 in the Market Planning
section. During first six months, | worked on:

» Feasibility study of CAN and NP fertilizers
Page 6 of 7



« Development of Demand Forecasting Model for Nitrogenous and Phosphatic

fertilizers.
* Restructuring the sales plan compilation procedures.

Education

Institute of Business Administration
MBA, Marketing & MIS - (1995 - 1996) -

National University of Computer and Emerging Sciences
BCS, Computer Sciences - (1989 - 1993)
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Contact
moiz_muhammad@hotmail.com

www.linkedin.com/in/
muhammadmoiz (Linkedin

Top Skills
Investment appraisals
Financial Modeling
Regulatory Affairs

Languages
English (Full F

.-'1’--' (Native

&

Muhammad Moiz

Manager Commercial at Engro Eximp FZE
Pakistan

Summary

+8 years of business & commercial development experience
for green field and brown field projects in energy, polymers &
petrochemicals sectors with Pakistan's leading business groups

Experience

Engro Eximp FZE

Manager Commercial
September 2021 - Present (1 year 2 months)

Habibullah Coastal Power Company - Jahangir Siddiqui Group
2 years 7 months

Senior Business Development Manager
July 2020 - September 2021 (1 year 3 months)

Key Responsibilities
+ Lead development of new projects and provide guidance to management and

board on investment decisions
« Negotiate contracts / HOAs with customers, suppliers, contractors, lenders &

equity partners.
» Manage acquisition process for pre-execution, FID critical permits and

licenses.
« Assist technical & procurement teams in preparation of project CAPEX &

OPEX budgets, RFPs / ITBs & EPC contracts.
« Assist finance teams in negotiations of debt financing term sheets and

agreements for project financing.
» Own & manage internal investment review process, development budget and

stakeholders.

Business Development Manager
March 2019 - June 2020 (1 year 4 months)

Engro Elengy Terminal Limited & Engro Vopak Terminal Limited
4 years 5 months
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Senior Business Development Officer
July 2017 - March 2019 (1 year 9 months)
Karachi

Key Responsibilities

« Prepare budgets, financial models, research markets, feasibility studies,
investment memorandums & project updaies

» Develop HOAs and key commercial terms and assist in negotiations of
agreements with project counterparties

» Develop permitting packages, engage stakeholders, attend public hearings
and decision committee meetings

« Manage cross functional communication between project teams in & outside

organization to ensure integration

Business Development Officer
November 2014 - June 2017 (2 years 8 months)

Karachi

Engro Fertilizers Ltd
2 years 4 months

Contracts Planning Engineer
July 2013 - October 2014 (1 year 4 months)

Daharki

Key Responsibilities

» Development and execution of contracting strategy for procurement of
services for projects & operations

» Contractor qualification & requalification to ensure development & availability

of capable & competitive contractors

Graduate Trainee Engineer
July 2012 - June 2013 (1 year)
Daharki. Sindh

Indus Motor Company Ltd
Trainee Engineer Quality Assurance
January 2012 - June 2012 (6 months)

Education

NED University Of Engineering & Technology
B.E, Mechanical - (2008 - 2011)
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MUHAMMAD UMAIR - ACA, ACMA & CGMA

+971 568 7161 53
umair.ismail@engdro.com

OB./ECTIVE

Seeking a senior position in Financial Department to work in a challenging environment, where 13 years of

experience especially expertise on finance transformation, automation and business turnaround can be applied.

EXPERIENCE

-

I Engro

) m-‘:“__ wé"cgwarding and repor’tirﬂi"dyﬁ'éﬁarmance management of the business on rﬁonthly basis

Chief Financial Officer — Trading Business Dubai, United Arab Emirates
(Reporting to CEO) June 2022 onwards

"

%  Managing working capital and trade finance requirement of the business
%  Designing and implementation of Risk Governance Protocols and procedures

*

“General Manager Shared Services — Holding Company Karachi, Pakistan

(Reporting to Vice President Finance) April 2021 — May 2022

% Formulating strategy centralized shared services function and it's implementation
<  Baselining the As-Is finance processes for invoice to pay, record to report and treasury operations.

&  Formulating plans to optimize finance processes and it's implementation

9 Pakistan Petroleum Limited

Deputy Chief Accountant — Budgeting & Transformation Section Karachi, Pakistan
(Reporting to Manager Finance) April 2018 — April 2021

X Preparation of budgeted and forecast financial statements including cashflow and profit and loss.
Quarterly performance reporting against the budget for the senior management and Board of Directors
Project Manager for rollout of robotic processing automation in accounts payables process whereby invoice

3,
*

o

-,

*

,
R4

processing and payment is done automatically.

Project Manager for implementation of Enterprise Planning & Budgeting Cloud Solution (EPBCS, formerly
Hyperion) for automation of annual budgeting and quarterly forecasting.

X Developed Strategy for Finance Transformation and Automation with an aim to streamline KPI reporting within

9,
L 44

*
*

finance function.

@ Kansai Paint Middle East

Financial Planning and Analysis Manager — MENA & CIS Region Dubai, United Arab Emirates
(Reporting to Group CFO & CEO) March 2015 — March 2018

%  Prepared country-wise financial models for submission to E&Y for Company financial evaluation. Worked

directly with Regional CEO and E&Y due diligence team.
Prepared feasibilities for two manufacturing sites (based in UAE and Morocco). The process involved

2
ofe

interaction with multiple functions and series of reviews at regional level and at Head Office in Japan.
Prepared a detailed turnaround plan for GCC entities through a detailed value chain analysis. The plan yielded

g

K7
"'

resulted in breakeven within a year of preparation.
%  Automated all monthly reporting to Kansai Paint Japan and other operational reports in particular Business

Performance and Inter-Company Balances Reporis;
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MUHAMMAD UMAIR - ACA, ACMA & CGMA

l Engro

Project Finance Manager — LNG Terminal Karachi, Pakistan
(reporting to CFO) November 2014 — March 2015

Participated as a team member in negotiating the project finance with a local and internal consortium including

Asian Development Bank (ADB) and Internationa! Finance Corporation (IFC);
&  Worked with CFO for raising bridge loans of USD 50 M from local consortium of banks and financial institutes.

A7
W

This required communication with all syndicate members and internal & external legal counsels;

<%  Liaison with taxation department for getting benefits of tax and duties exemption on materials imported for the
Project;
Managed all finance and treasury operations of the Company and support project team in timely clearance of

import documents from the bank.

Manager Financial Accounting — Fertilizers Business Karachi, Pakistan
{reporting to Financial Controller) March 2012 — October 2014

%  Managed tax cash flows worth USD 60 M through litigations and liaised with authorities for getting USD 6 M
tax refunds pending for two years. | was also awarded with the ‘Corporate Excellence Award'’ for getting these
refunds;

¢  Devised tax planning strategy, as a team member, for reducing corporate tax exposure on phosphate fertilizers

business (USD 2 M per annumy);

Redesigned / automated payroll disbursement process for reducing bank clearing time and implemented new

®,
9

taxation module and program for final settlement processing through SAP. This project also got nominated for
ASQ International Awards and | was also awarded with the ‘Corporate Excellence Award’ for these projects;

&  Worked with CFO for enterprise risk management and reporting. The risk matrix and registers were prepared
in consultation with other internai stakeholders. The final output was presented to board for their approval.

Assistant Manager internal Audit - Fertilizers Business Karachi, Pakistan
(reporting to Head of Corporate Audit) May 2010 — February 2012

i< Executed internat audit for financial and commercial processes and participated with head of corporate audit in

carrying out whistleblowers’ investigations.
Trained 500+ employees on business ethics and internal control. Participated with head of corporate audit in

K/
%

L)

conducting questionable practices review sessions. Findings along with the responses from relevant
stakeholders were presented to the Board for their approval.
< Involved in investment re-appraisal, as a team member, of an ethylene project on behalf of parent company.
The results were reported to the board investment committee of the parent company.
.
PW<< PricewaterhouseCoopers

: . Karachi, Pakistan
Audit Trainee October 2006— March 2010

%  Participated in a due diligence for Siemens for the acquisition of a government owned entity;

%  Client industries served includes non-banking Islamic financial (mutual funds and insurance), fast moving
consumer goods and services sector (media agency, container terminal, hotel, education and health care)

&  The responsibilities include implementation of IFRS, ensuring statutory compliances, communicating with the

clients.

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS

Updated in May 2020 | Page 2 of 3
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MUHAMMAD UMAIR - ACA, ACMA & CGMA W

Associate Chartered Accountant — Pakistan March 2010
Asgociatc_e Chartered Management Accountant & Chartered Global Management Accountant — February 2015
United Kingdom

Diploma in Big Data Analytics — Pakistan (IBA) February 2019
Certified RPA Analyst and Developer Aprit 2019
Certified Microsoft Power Bl January 2020

EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

Professional Accountants in
Business Committee — ICAP
Member (2013-15)

Visiting Faculty Member — TSA
(2019-21)

As a strategic advisory body PAIB Committee provides ICAP with strategic
input on the most relevant business and accountancy issues and facilitates
communication of knowledge and good practice.

Working with my Alma Mater in setting up technology enhancement
program. It includes data analytics and robotic processing automation.

Updated in May 2020
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LRG Calle Beethoven 15 4° planta

——
I i I bunkering 08021 Barcelona
a ' a n energy platform Spain- www maianenergy com

September 27™, 2022

Kaleem Asghar

Chief Executive Officer
Engro LNG FZE

Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

Subject: Services for LNG & RLNG supply management in Pakistan «—

Dear Kaleem,

| refer to our discussions with reference to Engro’s plan to initiate gas marketing in Pakistan and potential
collaboration between our respective companies for the same. As discussed, Maian Energy’s team,
comprising of LNG industry professionals with multi decade experience in intemational LNG market, is well
position to support Engro in various aspects of setting up LNG-RLNG supply chain in Pakistan.

1 am further pleased to propose our support to Engro for following element and aspects of the Project.

1. Support and advisory for negotiations of key agreements such as LNG Sales & Purchase Agreements
with LNG suppliers, Terminal Use and Third-Party Access agreements with terminal owners and gas

sales agreements with RLNG customers
2. Support and advisory on supply operations such as quarterly to annual planning, liaison with surveyors

and various agents, shipping, and freight management..

We believe that our team with extensive international exposure to LNG and gas markets will add significant
value to the proposed. venture. Further enclosed with this letter are profiles of key management & LNG

experts who will be working with Engro on various activities as Indicated above.

| look forward to us supporting Engro in the venture and wish you all the best--

Sincerely,

mn\J ofce_

Cristina de la Viesca
Director Aestus Energy SL/ Maian Energy

Cc: Alfonso Puga, Jose Maria Amat, Jaime Romero
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ALFONSO PUGA

08006-Barcelona (Spain)
Telephone: + 34 646 044 003

E-mail: alfonspuga@gmail.com

https://www.linkedin.com/in/alfonso-puga-5067465/

Energy executive with more than 23 years of experience in Gas&Power and LNG markets and more recently
hydrogen technologies; including business development, commercial negotiations, and transactions,
trading LNG and managing multi-disciplinary teams. Extensive international network, focus on Europe,
Middle East and Far East LNG players, and strong commercial knowledge adaptable to different cultures
and countries. Proven leadership skills, problem soiving oriented and strong analytical and organisational
expertise focussed on launching new projects and ventures.

EXPERIENCE
Strategy Consultant Energy Markets. LNG Advisor, Barcelona/London

Sept 2020 to Date
Building up the LNG trading desk for the boutique trading house with main partnership in China. Structuring

the LNG value chain for Chinese, Pakistani and Turkish companies securing LNG supply on term basis.
Advising projects to secure LNG for European markets.

Managing Director and Founder, Maian Energy, Aestus Energy Group, Barcelona/Madrid

Jjul 2019 to Date
Developing LNG Small Scale facilities and LNG bunkering platform infrastructure in several projects in the

Mediterranean basin. Start up focus on servicing the LNG to main key energy players in different locations
across the Spanish coast and North Africa. Currently developing the project finance for two barges and
involved in raising second round of financing,

Non Executive Director, Terminal Access Platform LNG (TAP LNG LTD), London

July 2020 to Date
Technology platform to facilitate trading of LNG capacities in Regasification plants

Senior VicePresident Marketing LNG /(CCO), NextDecade Corporation, London/Houston/Barcelona

Oct 15 to Apr 20

Responsible for the commercial and marketing activities as well the maintenance of the international
network. Negotiated multibillion sales agreements for the LNG. Interacted with all the rest of the
departments in order to line up the strategies to project finance the strategic projects in the company’s

portfolio. involved in all the business development streams.

Global Head of LNG Trading and Origination, PetroChina International UK, London

Mar 14 to Oct 15
Responsible for the set up of the trading unit, the origination and optimization of the Short-Term portfolio

for the PetroChina group. Managed the LNG trading P&L.

Chief Commercial Officer, Pangea LNG B.V. a Next Decade brand, London/Houston

Jan 12 to Mar 14

Pangea LNG was a new start up focussed on monetising stranded reserves of natural gas through Floating
LNG production. Pangea LNG developed the projects from early stages of business plan definition all the
way to Final Investment decision and execution of the projects. Pangea was conducting such developments
for two main projects in Eastern Mediterranean basin and USA. Responsible for the commercial unit,
Strategy of allocation of LNG sales, Natural Gas purchase and implementation of commercial structure. Set
up all the development for the LNG value chain.



Executive Director, Head of LNG, Goldman Sachs International, London

2009-2011
Start up and launch of LNG integrated business. Development of global LNG strategies for Internationa!

trading ST/LT/Spot. Origination of LNG initiatives and new projects related to equity investment and
financing through commodity delivery/offtake. Coordination of LNG business in the different company
areas: Americas, Europe and Asia. Securing the whole LNG chain: Supply/Shipping/Regas/transport. Design,
Negotiation and Execution of MSA and SPA discussions.

Vice President LNG Trading, Essent Energy Trading, Den Bosch/Geneva

2006-2009

Essent Trading is the trading company of Essent NV, the largest energy company in the Netherlands and a
Dutch energy conglomerate specialising mainly in generation, trading and distribution of energy and energy
related preducts. Start up and launch of LNG trading business. Development of business plan for
International trading ST/LT/Spot. Secured and negotiated LT regas capacity in the Gate terminal (NL) and
Fos Cavaou (F). Negotiated supply term agreements with key producers.

Head of Gas Purchases and LNG Trading, Union Fenosa Gas, Madrid

2001-2006

Union Fenosa Gas, previous to be acquired by Gas Natural group in 2009 was the 2nd largest integrated gas
company in Spain and one of the most active LNG trader and arbitrator between Atlantic and Far East
markets. It operated 2 liquefaction projects in Egypt and Oman and managed 2 methane tankers.

Started Up of Union Fenosa Gas developing Commercial area. Identification of gas and LNG Global business
opportunities. Created a worldwide network of more than 50 counterparts. Negotiated and executed more
than 50 LNG MSA and up to 3 SPA. Achieved and managed LNG trading P&L of Eur 50 MM. Leaded and

managed the trading executive team.

Sales Executive, Naturgy {former Gas Natural Group). Barcelona / Madrid

1997-2001

Leaded sales and implementation of integrated gas projects and management of energetic services {turn-
key projects: Power & gas, cogeneration, trigeneration, LNG satellite stations). Managed sales of equipment
for trigeneration projects. Created the structure of company subsidiaries in different Spanish regions with
the co-operation of different departments in Gas Natural Group (Sales, Technical service, Marketing). Key
account sales engineer for industrial gas sales.

EDUCATION/TRAINING

2021 Hydrogen Technologies, Centro Nacional del Higrogeno (Spain)

2020 Economic Intelligence, CEDEGYS {Spain)

2019. MA, Master in Arts- Strategic Studies and international Security. UNIVERSITY OF GRANADA {Spain)
2018 Geopolitics of the Natural Resources, CEDEGYS (Spain)

2008-2009 Executive MBA, IMD LAUSANNE (Switzerland)

2000-2001 Energy Business Management Program. CLUB ESPANOL DE LA ENERGIA. (Spain)

1989-1995 MSc. Industrial Engineering. Power speciality. UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHWALES (UK) &
UNIVERSIDAT POLITECNICA DE CATALUNYA (Spain)

OTHER

Military Second Lieutenant in the Spanish Army.

Speaker in different LNG/gas business conferences in Europe.

Written some papers about energy business for relevant Energy/Economic publications.

LANGUAGES
Spanish: bilingual, Catalan: mother tongue, English: fluent, italian: fluent, French: basic level

Can



José Amat

e-mail: jamatcar@outlook.es
Mobile: + 34 653 816 615
Nationality: Spanish

Age: 54 (Feb 68, Alicante)
Experience

e More than 25 years devoted to the energy sector in companies specialized in the natural gas
business, building and managing diversified teams

» Experienced in commercial roles (LNG portfolio creation, LNG arbitration, hedging, short and long
contracts negotiation) as well as strategic positions (planning, market intelligence, standardization)

e  Currentiy working in different energy initiatives: at Maian Energy as a global sustainable LNG
bunkering platform forming part of the small-scale value chain, at Global Energy Activities
promoting renewable energy, and developing sustainable LNG supply from producers to final
consumers through Bold LNG

Nov 2010 - Mar 2021 Unién Fenosa Gas (UFG) Madrid
Executive Vice President Planning

« Hedging operations & Margin & risk control

+ Strategic advising & support to power gen & procurement negotiations
«  Procedures’ standardization, ISO certificates, GHG emissions

s«  Supply/demand gas balance follow up and control

»  Strategic planning {business plans & business value appraisals)

= Giobal gas research & market intelligence

Jun 2005 - Nov 2010 Unidén Fenosa Gas (UFG) Madrid

Vice President Gas Procurement & Market Analysis / Gas
Procurement & Trading Manager

¢ Procurement: short- & iong-term LNG SPA negotiations, amendments,
price review renegotiations

» Trading: sale & purchase physical deals, spot and arbitration (Pacific,
Middle East & Atlantic basins)

= Master agreement LNG/NG SPA negotiations

Jun 2001 - Jun 2005 Unién Fenosa Gas (UFG) Madrid
Market Analvsis & Development/ Oman Business Manager

¢ Contract negotiation & support (purchase, downstream & logistics)
« Purchase: Algerian gas release auction and Oman project launching
+» Downstream: power gen contracts negotiation

+« Framework agreements, memoranda of understanding, heads of terms,
shareholders’ agreements (liquefaction & regas companies)

Responsibilities managed along UFG tenure

Credit Committee Chairman

Ethical Code Committee Member

Board Member @ Infraestructuras de Gas (Sagunto regas plant 50% owner)
Tamar Project Steering Committee Member {Israel/Egypt)

Performance Appraisal Committee Member

Qalhat LNG Management Team Member {Muscat-Oman)

Qalhat LNG Project Steering Committee Member {(Muscat-Oman)

1/2 José Amat Sept 2022



Academic background

Sep 1995 -~ May 2001 Naturgy Madrid
Corperate Planning Snecialist

¢ Market liberalisation medelling: tolls & fees determination

« Investment analysis & Business value appraisals

+ Residential, industrial & large customers’ price formuia evaiuations
+  Supply formulas analysis & Margin forecasts

Mar 1994 — Mar 1995 Tabacalera Madrid

Research & Development department support

s Operating manual definition for R&D processing plant

Sep 1992 - Jun 1993 Ford Spain Valencia

Academic deagree proiect development

+ ‘Just in Time’ Project definition and improvement proposals

Jan 1991 ~ Sep 1992 H&A Engineers Valencia

Enaineering Consultancy partner

« Company start-up: Commercial, technical, invoicing & foliow-up
¢ Structural stress calculation projects, business start-up permitting

2/2

Advanced Management Programme (AMP)

2009-2010 ESADE and Wharton University Madrid & Philadelphia

Master in Economic and Financial Management

1999-2001 Centro de Estudios Financieros (CIF) Madrid

Industrial Engineer (business organization)
1989-1993 E.T.S.1.I. Polytechnic University Valencia

Technical Industrial Engineer (chemistry)

1986-1989 Escuela Univ. Ingenieria Técnica Alicante & Valencia

Languages:

+ Spanish: native language

< English: fluent

+ French & Italian: basic knowledge

José Amat Sept 2022
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JAIVIEROMERO RODRIGUEZ

jaime.romero.Ing@gmail.com

Mobile: +34 653817761

Heal-Gas/ING Ofigination“and - Trading ="

withrvast experience in the natural gas
sector: - trading, origination.  and
management. Many milestones achieved
conttibuting to make of UFG a picneer in
matly areas of-the LNG arena

L ANGUAGES
s English: fluent
= Spanish: native

Work Experience

Naturgy (2021)
April 21/ Dec 21 Head of Strategy in Energy Management and Markets division

Evaluate the work flow and propose a new organization to favor simplicity and
efficiency in the marketing management of gas and power.

Unién Fenosa Gas (2002-2021)

Jun 11/ March 21. Senior Manager Trading

Jun 09 / July 11. Gas Procurement and Trading Manager

Yan 04 / Jun 09. Gas Procurement and Trading Executive

Jan 02 / Jun 04. Gas Procurement and Business Development

Short term business {trading):
1. Ensure business continuity

Sales and purchases, both LNG and NG, required to keep the supply-demand
balance in close coordination with the Logistics Manager.

2. Enhance and develop the relationship with Oman.

Arbitrage opportunities with the LNG cargos committed with the Omani LNG
companies.

Achieved a high number of diversions of such origin to FE and ME. Diversions and
purchase of replacement cargoes, both negotiations concluded at the same time in
very different time zones and minimizing all the risks associated.

3. Optimize the position in Egypt
Diversion activities of the LNG cargoes produced in Damietta liquefaction plant in

Egypt.

o Milestones in OTC market:
Actively participated in over 1000 LNG spot transactions

Year 12: Head of the team that concluded over 6,5 bcm transacted velume of LNG in
more than a hundred operations of short term trading.

Year 07: Negotiator of the first ever spot LNG cargo sold to China.
o Milestones in organized markets:
Aggregated profit of 5SMEUR in the period.

Achieved a peak of volume transacted of 17TWh in MIBGAS in a single month.
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¥Problem-solving and decision
making: used to work in a high
“stressed situations sorting our
problems efficiently, keeping
‘zood manners.
Negotiation skills: Vast
experience negotiating with
third parties withverydifferent
cultural approach
Team-working: Friendly
engaging with the relevant
personnel within the company
to achieve the common goals

Mid and long term business (origination):

1. Ensure business continuity

Head negotiator of several mid-term supply agreements some of them with the
shareholders of UFG.

2. Enhance the iong term relation with Oman

Negotiator of commercial amendments framed in the UFG-QLNG long term SPA. Lead
negotiator from 2010 i.e. 8 agreements since the start of 2010.

3. Sustainable development of the business.

Head negotiator of the GSPA UFG-Tamar Partners to purchase gas in Israel to be
liguefied in Egypt.

Head negotiator of UFG for the commercial midstream agreements for the Damietta
Train 2 LNG Project.

Qalhat LNG SAOC {QLNG). (2009-2021).
Member of the Sharehoider Management Committee

= Support the management of QLNG and steer them on the guidelines stated by the
Board. Protect UFG's interest as shareholder of QLNG

ENAGAS (2001-2002)

Study and development of the pressure stations, efficiency studies related to load factor

Education

Apr 12 / Dec12 IESE Business School. PDD, Executives Development Program.
Oct 05 / Jun 06 Enerclub. (320 hours). Graduated in the XVIIl Energy Business Program

1995 / 2001 Universidad Politécnica de Madrid. Mining Engineering
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19 October 2022

To:

The Registrar

Oil & Gas Regulatory Authonty
54B Fazl-e-Haq Road, Blue Area
Islamabad, Pakistan.

Subject: Requirement to provide details of the resource and expertise to handie
emergency situations, for the licence of sale of natural gas under Rule 4 of the
NGRA Rules, 2002.

Dear Sir,

We would like to inform that Engro LNG FZE (the “Applicant’) is the process of obtaining a
valid license for sale of natural gas.

The requirement under Rule 4(3)(i) National Gas Regulatory Authority Rules, 2002 may not
be applicable as the Applicant does not intend to operate any LNG regasification and natural

gas supply infrastructure.

In case the Applicant establishes any infrastructure regarding LNG regassification and/or
natural gas supply and distribution, it shail ensure that rigorous safety standards are applied.

Regards,

Arlin Merchant

Company Secretary

Engro LNG FZE engro.com

an Engro Carporation Limited Group Company

4



List of Senior Management of Engro LNG FZE

Kaleem Asghar

Chief Executive Officer
JAZFA One, Tower A, 11t Floor, Jebel Ali Free Zone Dubai,

United Arab Emirates

Umair Ismail

Chief Financial Officer
JAZFA One, Tower A, 11t Floor, Jebel Ali Free Zone Dubai,

United Arab Emirates

Muhammad Moiz | Manager Commercial

3" Floor, Dawood Center, MT Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan

Arlin Merchant

Company Secretary
8% Floor, Harbor Front, Clifton Block 4, Karachi, Pakistan
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19 October 2022

To:
The Registrar
Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority

54B Fazl-e-Haq Road, Blue Area
Islamabad, Pakistan.

Subject: Requirement to disclose the interest of applicant, officers or directors under
Rule 4(3)(k) for the licence of sale of natural gas under of the NGRA Rules, 2002,

Dear Sir,

We would like to inform you that that Engro LNG FZE (the “Applicant’) has been recently
incorporated for the sale of natural gas.

The Applicant is not required to comply with Rule 4(3)(k) as the Applicant or any of its officers
or directors are not directly or indirectly controlling voting interest in any entity engaged in the
production, transmission, distribution or sales of natural gas. -

Regards,

wachat

Arlin Merchant

Company Secretary

Engro LNG FZE engro.com

an Engro Gorporation Limited Group Company

o~

@
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19 October 2022

To:

The Registrar

Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority
54B Fazl-e-Haq Road, Blue Area
Islamabad, Pakistan.

Subject: Requirement to provide details of petitions, applications and filings having an
effect on the application for the licence of sale of natural gas under Rule 4 of

the NGRA Rules, 2002.

Dear Sir,

We would like to inform you that Engro LNG FZE (the “Applicant’) is in the process of making
an application for the purpose of obtaining a licence for the sale of natural gas.

The Applicant has not filed any other applications, petitions or fillings, which are pending
before the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority, that might have a direct or an indirect effect on
our application for a license for the sale of natural gas.

Regards,

Kuochod ’

Arlin Merchant

Company Secretary

. Engro LNG FZE engro.com

an Engro Corporation Limited Group Company
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Engro LNG FZE - RLNG Supply

Business Model

aggregation the Company is éngaging customers such as utilities, industries requiring gas for process
use as well as captive power and CNG sector.

Terminal capacity acquisition from existing as well as upcoming LNG terminals under third party access
framework on long term as weil as annual open season basis. The company is part of Engro Group
who has deep understanding and experience of Pakistan's RLNG & gas market being the developer
and operator of Pakistan's first LNG terminal. Engro Eixmp FZE, the parent company of Engro LNG
FZE has recently entered into a Memorandum of Understanding for joint development of gas marketing
business in Pakistan with Excelerate Energy who is also FSRU provider for Pakistan's first LNG import
terminai. Through Excelerate Energy, an integrated LNG Company and a leader in off shore LNG
terminais business, the Company wil benefit from not only internationa| experiences in private gas
marketing in emerging economies but also deep insights and expertise for commercial Management of
third party access framework. Excelerate Energy has fecently commenced private sector gas marketing
in Brazil through deployment of its FSRU in the country.

Annual Gas Sales Forecast

Below is 10 year gas sales forecast by the Company which ig based on Company's current engagement
with the customers and market understanding.




()

Number & Consumption Details of Potential Customers

Short Term (1-3 Years)
Engro Polymer & Chemicals 20 MMscfd |
CNG Stations | 70 MMscfd
Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited | 20 MMscfd
Power Sector | 20 MMscfd ‘

Medium to Long Term (3-10 Years)

Engro Polymer | 20 MMscfd
Engro Energy | 50 MMscfd
CNG Stations

70 MMscfd

| Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited 20 MMscfd
Other Power Sector | 200 MMscfd
Korangi, Landhi & Port Qasim Industries | 50 MMscfd




DocuSign Envelope 1D: DA0037B1-EB2B-45FE-84D2-9F916BF4829E

EXCELERATE ENERGY L.P,

E XC E L E RATE 2445 Technology Forest Blvd., Level 6
ENERGY The Woodlands, TX 77381 USA

T: +1 832 813 7100
F: +18328137103

excelerateenergy.com

27 September 2022
Kaleem Asghar
Chief Executive Officer

Engro LNG FZE
Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

Subject: LNG supply to Engro LNG FZE for Gas Marketing in Pakistan

Dear Kaleem,
Subsequent to the execution of MoU between Engro & Excelerate we are very keen to work together with Engro to
develop gas marketing business in Pakistan and to play our part in bringing much needed LNG molecules to the
country.

In this regard, we are further pleased to confirm our intention to supply LNG to Engro and look forward to
immediately commence discussions for the same. Excelerate is an established player in the LNG market with deep-
rooted contractual relationships with major LNG suppliers, traders, and marketers globally. Further, with our
ambition to partner with Engro in downstream gas marketing, we are also very well positioned to develop a supply
solution that is aligned with specific downstream needs in Pakistan.

Please find enclosed with this letter an introduction to our LNG market presence, including projects and markets
we are currently supporting as well as supply capabilities.

We look forward to our collaboration and to piay our part in strengthening energy security of Pakistan together with
Engro.

Sincerely,
DocuSigned by:

Blwer Simpsou.
0322B0OBD25C24589..
Oliver Simpson

Vice President - Commercial
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EXCELERATE
@ ENERGY

Excelerate’s Energy LNG Market Presence

Excelerate Energy Around the World

Hendguarters o
A The Woodlends

Regiunel Offices
B. Washington, D.C.
. Bokton, MA -
0. Buenos Aires, Argenting
E. Rio de Janeiro, Brazit
F. Antwerp, Belgiom .
G. Doha, Qatar o m
H. Abu Dhabi, UAE T ESRL Senua B PR Exqoinite :
3. Dhaka, Bangladesh S, G Eneut | PR h
K. Chattogram, Bangladesh ol I B 44 g Yol :_'__'. e
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M. Mo Chi Minh City, Vietham T esnihepednns RN - ¥
o oh ol a - g
N. Manila, Philippines TSR N ;wf::;"w = 4;"
PSRL: Eneriplas — ‘@EXCELERATE‘
ENERGY &

HISTORY
¢ EXCELERATE HAS BEEN ENGAGED IN LNG TRADING AND COMMERCIAL SHIPPING SINCE ITS FOUNDING IN 2003

¢ EXCELERATE HAS DEVELOPED OVER 15 DIFFERENT FSRU AND OFFSHORE LNG-TO-GAS TERMINAL SOLUTIONS
ACROSS 11 DIFFERENT COUNTRIES

CAPABILITIES

e LNG TRADING AND OPTIMIZATION

O EXCELERATE ENERGY HAS OVER 70+ MASTER SALE & PURCHASE AGREEMENTS (MSPAS) WITH NEARLY ALL
THE MAJOR LNG SUPPLIERS IN THE WORLD

O SUPPLIED LNG TO GLOBAL MARKETS ACROSS ASIA, MIDDLE EAST, LATIN AMERICA, EUROPE, AND UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA WITH A STRONG FOCUS ON MARKETS WITH AN EXCELERATE FSRU ASSET

O PAST 12 MONTHS OF TRADED VOLUMES IS APPROXIMATELY 1.5 MILLION TONS PER ANNUM (1.5 MTPA)

® LNG SHIPPING: EXCELERATE ENERGY IS ACTIVE PLAYER IN COMMERCIAL LNG SHIPPING MARKET TO SUPPORT FOB
SUPPLY OPPORTUNITIES OR TO OPTIMIZE VESSEL UTILIZATION FROM 10 ESRU FLEET

* LNG SHIP-TO-SHIP (STS) TRANSFERS: EXCELERATE ENERGY IS THE WORLD LEADER IN STS TRANSFERS WITH
EXPERTISE IN OPEN-WATER, JETTY, AND OFFSHORE BUQY STS OPERATIONS

Page 2 of 2




“engroelengy terminal
Letter # EETL/2022/050

29" September 2022

Mr. Kaleem Asghar

Chief Executive Officer

Engro LNG FZE,
Dubai, UAE.

Subject: Allocation of terminal capacity by Engro Elengy Terminal (Private) Limited

Dear Kaleem,

The letter is in response to your request dated 27t July 2022 to acquire additional capacity from
Engro Elengy Terminal (Private) Limited {(“EETL”). As you are aware that following ECC’s decision
of July 2019 and July 2020 to allow third parties to use LNG terminal regasification capacities,
EETL is working to expand its regasification capacity by replacing the current FSRU ‘Exquisite’ with
a larger FSRU which will enable EETL to accommodate up to [150] mmscfd extra capacity over
and -above what has been guaranteed to Sui Southern Gas Company Limited under its LNG
operation and services agreement.

We would like to express our ihtention in allocation of excass / additional capacity to Engro LNG
FZE. The terms and conditions of allocation will be agreed upon by parties in due course and final

allocation will be subject to, inter alia, the receipt of regulatory approvals for activities to be

undertaken by both partjes.

We are available for further discussion on the subject matter and look forward working with your
company on the same.

Yours sincerely,

Jomot -

Ismail Mahmud
Chief Executive Officer

) : 3 } Engro Elengy Terminal {Pvt.) Limited
Head Office: Corporate Office Block, 4th Floor, Oftice Number 5, Dolmen City, HG # 3, Block 4, Scheme 5, Ciiften, Karachi.
UAN; 92 {(21)111 311-311 Tel: 92 (21) 3529 3901-3 Fax: 82-(21) 3529 3906
-WWw.engro.com

]



éngro polymer & chemicals

October 13, 2022

Kaleem Asghar

Chief Exectitive Officer
Engro LNG FZE

Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

Subject: Letter of Intent— Sourcing of RLNG for Engre Polymer & Chemicals Limited (“EPCL?)

Dear Kaleem,

With reference to our ongoing discussions on the subject, we understand that Engro LNG FZE is setting up a RLNG
marketing business in Pakistan and is in process of acquiring regulatory approvals for the same.

EPCL on average consumes 22 MMscfd of gas. Keeping in mind our business requirsment and the current gas
supply in the market, we are keen to explore more sources for procuring gas.

We would hence like to express our interest for potential somcing of RLNG from Engro LNG FZE, and subject to
EPCL and Engro LNG FZE procuring all relevant approvals would like to proceed to diseuss muinally agreeable
terms-and conditions regarding this.

This Letter of Intent shall notin any marnner whatsoever be construcd as creating any legal obligations on EPCL.

For and on behalf of Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited

fubop i

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive Officer

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited
12ih Floor, Ocean Tower, G-3; Block-9, Clifton, Khayaban-e-lqba), Kerachi 75600, Pakistan,
UAN:92 (21) 111411411 Fax: 92 (21) 35166865
www.engropolymer.com
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Warachi 75000, Pa

ENgro energy |

12-10-2022

Kaleem Asghar

Chief Executive Officer
Engro LNG FZE

Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

Subject: Letter of Intent for sourcing RLNG for Engro Energy Limited (“EEL”)

Dear Kaleem,

With reference to our ongoing discussions on the subject, we understand that Engro LNG FZE is setting up
an RLNG marketing business in Pakistan and is in the process of acquiring regulatory approvals for the

same.

EEL is currently assessing an RLNG based power plant as one of the key options to cater to baseload
requirements of one of its projects and for this purpose envisages an RLNG requirement of approximately

50 MMscfdp.

We would hence like to express our interest for potential sourcing of RLNG from Engro LNG FZE and
would like to proceed with discussions on prospective terms and conditions with Engro LNG FZE regarding

this matter.

Sincerely,

Vice President
Business Development Division
Engro Energy Limited

86

Erisroy Lapy et
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ELF/OGRA/2023/01
31 January 2023

Munawar Sajjad Gondal
Assistant Registrar

Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority
54B Fazl-e-Haq Road, Blue Area
Islamabad, Pakistan

Subject:  Application for Grant of License for Sale of Natural Gas / RLNG
Dear Mr. Gondal,

We, Engro LNG FZE (“Company”) refer to your letter dated December 5, 2022, bearing No. 6(1)-

NG(ELF)/2022. In respect thereof, please note our para- wise responses on enquiries made in the letter.

(a) The Company intends to begin its gas marketing activities from customers in close vicinity of

A i

_.'-_-_-___-_.- 7 .
existing re-gasified liquid natural gas (RLNG) custody transfer station located at Port Qasim to

whom gas can be supplied, either without access to the national grid or through limited access to

grid in some cases. The Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (“Authority”) has already laid the
E g fg foundation for access to the E“_'j{f,l_‘,m‘!gh promulgation of OGRA Gas (Third Party Access) Rules
}_;:-; W A 2018, therefore, access to the grid is now only a matter subject to agreements with grid companies
gzg \g which can be entered in to at a later stage, as and when needed. Once the required license has been
= ) < issued by the Authority, the Company will take all necessary measures to comply with all
§ Eé' J requirements under the applicable law. .
% ;:'3‘? § (b) Please find attached the Memorandum of Understanding between the Company and Engro Elengy

Terminal (Pvt.) Limited, enclosed as Annex-01 hereto.

(c) Company’s envisaged assets in the beginning are USD 50 million comprising mostly of ‘liq_uid
assets (gas / LNG inventory and cash equivalents). As a gas marketing business, the Company does
not intend to install or own any physical Tfacilities or assets, therefore, such fixed assets of k

operational nature or CAPEX for the business are expected to be at a minimal.

(d) The Company is wholly owned by Engro Eximp FZE, which itself is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Engro Corporation Limited; with Engro group’s total assets valued at PKR 730 billion, as of
chtember 30, 2022. As one of sthedeadinpnpPpiamerates of Pakistan with businesses ranging from

v

Engro LNG FZE
an Engro Corporation Lln'%e

engro.com




138

energy, petrochemicals, fertilizers to mining and dairy, the Engro group is well placed in all respects

to support the development of a gas marketing business in Pakistan.

(e) Company is in process of acquiring approval to open Branch office at 3 Floor, Dawood Center.
MT Khan Road and is engaged with Board of Investment for the same. If required, we will furnish
a copy of the approval to the Authority.

I hope our above sufficiently addresses your queries. We are available for any clarification in this regard.

For and on behalf of Engro LNG FZE.

Q,O L X
Kaleem Asghar
Chief Executive Ofﬁce /

Enclosed: as above




R LUV VRN B R B

139

A3 STEEL AUAY s ypmnan

-fz.’« HrQZ'CnLr S S, 2 ﬂ MAY 2{}22
;;;,;;;;;;::;;;;";;;;;;:1'.£?§§Hﬁ§,ry"§z;zss;ﬁ :

ot winn -\ﬁen:a‘s....&

L 2 s,

MEMO UM OF UNDERST. ING .

This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING ("MOU") is made and entered into on 31 January
2022 (the “Effective Date”).

ENGRO LNG FZE, a company incorporated under the laws of the United Arab Emirates and
having jts registered office at Jafza One, Tower A, 11 Floor, Jafza, Dubai, United Arab Emirates
(“ELF”, which expression shall include where the context so permits jts Successors-in-interest and
permitted assigns) OF THE FIRST PART;

bt - S, s e v
ot et e e e



RECITALS:

L BETPLisa company incorporated for the purpose of Operating Pakistan’s firg: LNG Floating
Storage and Regasification Uni; and o provide LNG regasification serviges (”Tenninal").

connection with the same (“Third Party Access™),

NOW THEREFORE in recognition of the agnemmt-in-pﬁnciple between them, the Parties record thej-
understanding as follows:

ARTICLE 3: INTERPRETATION

In this MOU, unlessfhereisEOmeﬂ'linginﬂlesubject OF content inconsistent with such construction or
unless it is otherwige expressly provided:

(a) The headings are for convenience only and shal be ignored in tonstruing or interpreting this
MOU.

(b} The singular shall also inclyge the plural and vice versa,

(€} All references in this MOU to days, months, quarters or years shall be to days, months quarters
and years under the Gregorian calendar,

(d In carrying out its obligations and duties under thig MOU, each Party shall have an implied
obligation of good faith,

ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF MOU

21

22

1bo
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ARTICLE 3: OBLIGATIONS OF PARTIES

31 Porthe purposes of the Collaboration, ELF and EETPL shall;

(@  ina manner that is compliant to applicable laws and regulations, establish and agree to terms
and conditions acceptable to regulator(s) (as may be applicable), pursuant to the Third Party
Aceess regime, for the acquisition of excess and additional regasification Capacity up to 150
MMSCFD at the Terminal or any such other capacity as may be made available by EETPY.

() develop operational framework for Third Party Access at the Terminal for the Parties; ang

(©)  acquire Tequisite regulatory approvals enabling the Tespective business activities of the Parties,

ARTICLE 4: NO VIOLATION

41

Each Party represents to the other Party that, as of the Effective Date, this MOU and the

transactions contemplated hereby, will not violate any contract, agreement or commitment
currently binding on such Party.

51 Al costs and expenses incurred by a Party in relation to the MOU, which include, but are not
limited to, al] internal balances, overheads, travel expenses, other Oout-of-pocket expenses and
any other interna} expenses shall be borne ang paid by the Party incurring the same without
charge to or reimbursement from the other Party. '
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ARTICLE 7: NON-DISCI.OSURE

71 No Party shall discloge any information 1 any third party Concerning the matterg under this

72 This Clause shay not apply where:

(®) disdosure ig made to the employees, who strictly need to know the information i connection
with the Collaboration;

(®)  disclosureto any court, the Government orother Statutory authorities, regulatory bodies, or other
bodies to the extent required by law, guidelines, rules or regulations applicable to any Party; -

(©  required o consultants or advisers engaged by a Party, with the Prior written consent of other

(@ information is already in public domain byt ot as a result of breach of this MOU; of

(®) at the date hereof lawfully in the Possession of a Party and is not subject to 4 duty of non-

73  This Clause shall survive the termination or expiry of the MO,

ARTICLE §; NON-BINDING EFFECT AND NON-EXCLUSIVITY

8.1

82
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ARTICLE g; CORRESPONDENCE AND NOTICES

91 Al correspondences, notices, demands and other communication so defined shall be in writing
and also shall be:

())  Personally delivered;
(t)  Delivered by courier or registered mail; or
(© Delivered by official email account of the company Tepresentative;

at the addresses specified in Clause 9.3 below,

92  The date of or receipt of any notice, demand, Tequest or other communication shall be deemed
to be the date of receipt if delivered Ppersonally or the date seven (7) calendar days after dispatch
if delivered by international courier or registered mail or if transmitted by email, upon vatid
dispatch thereof before 3:00 PM on a business day, otherwise on the next business day,

93  AParty may change its address and advise the other Party in writing of any change of address

as below:
m -
Name: Muhammad Moiz
Designation: Manager Commercja}
Address; Office 12G, Gold Tower, Cluster ], Jumerigh Lake Tower, Dubai
Email; ‘ i
EETFL
Name: Meashood Nadeem Khan
Designation: Manager Commerdial & Business Development
Address: Corporate Office Block, 4th Floor, Office Number 5, Dolmen City, HC#3, Block 4,
Scheme 5, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan
Email:

ARTICLE 10: ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING




113 Subject to the arbitration clayge above, should &ny recourse to the Courts of Law become

122 The provisions of this MOU may only be amended / modified in writing and signed by both

123 No wajver by either Party of any defauit by the other in the performance of any of the provisiong

124 The rights of the Parties under this MOU are not assignable.

Y
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties by their duly authorized respective representatives have caused
thisMOUtobeexecutedasofﬂ\edayandyearﬁrstabovewﬁtten. [ (15‘

(s

Name: Kaleem Asghar

Designation: Chief Executive Officer

For and on behalf of ENGRO ELENGY TERMINAL (PVT) LIMITED:

\

-

Name: Ismail Mahmud

Designation: Chief Executive Officer

Witnesses
1S
\ V2
Name: A\ KALL Name: Magireo o Nodeown Krown
CNIC/Passport No.: y 15214(w ¢ A CNIC/P No: Y220{$9430 SO
o

s i 4
Name: F‘-\WM Name: KI;W'U'\ Nﬂ ar.
Address: Bawpod Lobe, Address: Corpsfete. Office Breck.

CNIC/Passport No: 45 51293 0 £ 3 CNIC/Passport No: 33450~ 6716~
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DaiLy bawn, TANUARY, 11, 2zY

Ot & Gas
f%e itorv.&a*hamy

Engro LNG FZE (ELF), Karachi ahe appllcant) appi:ed under OGRA Natural Gas (Licensing) Rules,
2002 on 19-16-2022 for grant of license for Sale of Natural Gas/RLNG. The applicant is wholly
owned subsidiary of Engro Eximp FZE who itself is wholly owned by ENGRO Corporation Ltd. The
applicant further stated that they are incorporated by Engro as a special purpose vehicles to
undertake gas marketing and sales in Pakistan leveraging their experience.and leadership position in
Pakistan's LNG/RLNG sectors. The Engro aspires o piay its part in cementing ensrgy security of

Pakistan by enhancingits role and business operation from Pakistan's first LNG terminal to setting up’

of a creditable LNG supply chain in country’s private sector.
After subrnission of the requisite data / information by the applicant, the Authority has-admitted the

instant application for Public Comments / Hearing. Therefore, all persons and parties who are likely
to be affected by the grant of this license are hereby notified to file objections, written comments for
intervention requests addressed to Registrar OGRA, describing the manner in which stch
persons/parties may be affected by the grant of this license and may also appear on below
mentioned Public Hearing.

The intervention request shall be filed along with fee of Rs.500/- (bank draft) and affidavit verifying
the contents of communication on or before the date of Public Hearing. Copies of the documents
submitted by the applicant can be obtained on payment of prescribed charges of Rs.2/- per page
fromthe office of Senior Registrar or can be downloaded from OGRA's official website.

In sequel to all above, OGRA has decided to hold Public Hearing iri the instant matter according to

date, time and venue mentioned below:

Date Fehruary 02, 2024 (Fﬂday)
Time : 10:30a.m
Venue : OGRA Head Office, Plot No.37-39 Mauve Area

Service Road South, Sector G-10/4, Islamabad

For any information requxred frem the appiicant please contact:

Mz, Kalpem Asghar ‘

Chief Executive Dfficer Engro LNG FZE
3" Floor,Dawood Center, MT Khan Raad Karachz
Telephone: 021-35208750-10, E. Mail; engroeximplze@e
Dr. Abdul Basit Qureshi
SENIOR REGISTRAR

0il & Gas Regulatory Authority
Pict No 37 & 38 ,Mauve Area ,Service Boad South ,G-10/4, Islamabad
Phone; 051-9244296, 051~9244090 g8 (ExHS/)

P?D{’ 4187/2 Tublic Sevice . Lo L
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'» DALy TAnG, JANUARY 14 2024

Cil & Gas
Revulatory Authority

Caverniment of Palistan
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